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Interpreter Services Statement
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Letter of Compliance

Queensland
Government
Office of the Level 14 Block 7
Metro North Hospital and Health Board Royal Brisbane and Women’s Hospital

Herston QLD 4029
T +61 7 3647 9702
E metro_north_board@health.qld.gov.au

The Honourable Steven Miles MP

Deputy Premier, Minister for Health and Minister for Ambulance Services
GPO Box 48

BRISBANE QLD 4001

Dear Deputy Premier

| am pleased to submit for presentation to the Parliament the Annual Report 2019-2020 and financial
statements for Metro North Hospital and Health Service.

| certify that this annual report complies with:

* The prescribed requirements of the Financial Accountability Act 2009 and the Financial and
Performance Management Standard 2019; and

* The detailed requirements set out in the Annual Report Requirements for Queensland
Government agencies.

A checklist outlining the annual reporting requirements can be found on page 77 of this annual report.

Yours sincerely

27

Jim McGowanp/ AM
Chair
Metro North Hospital and Health Board

31/08/2020
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Acknowledgement to Traditional Owners

Metro North is proud to recognise the cultural diversity
of our workforce.

We recognise and pay respect to the Turrbal,
Dalungbara/Djoondaburri, Gubbi Gubbi/Kabi Kabi,
Jagera/Yuggera/Ugarapul, Jinibara/Jiniburi, Ninghi and
Undumbi people of Metro North Hospital and Health
Service area, on whose lands we walk, work, talk

and live.

We also acknowledge and pay our respect to Aboriginal
and Torres Strait Islander Elders both past and present.

Recognition of Australian South Sea Islanders

Metro North formally recognises the Australian South
Sea Islanders as a distinct cultural group within our
geographical boundaries. Metro North is committed

to fulfilling the Queensland Government Recognition
Statement for Australian South Sea Islander Community
to ensure that present and future generations of
Australian South Sea Islanders have equality of
opportunity to participate in and contribute to the
economic, social, political and cultural life of the State.
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Government Objectives for the Community

Metro North Hospital and Health Service (Metro North) contributes to the
Government’s objectives for the community Our Future State: Advancing

Queensland’s Priorities:

Keep Queenslanders healthy

through delivering high quality mental health
services to support our population and reduce
suicide rates. In 2019-20, Metro North opened

a mental health short stay unit at Caboolture
Hospital, providing brief interventions for people
presenting with acute mental health concerns.

Give all our children a great start

through high quality maternity services and improving
access to antenatal and postnatal care, particularly for
First Nations people. Metro North partnered with the
Institute of Urban Indigenous Health to enhance service
delivery via the Birthing in Our Community model.

Metro North also contributes to other objectives for the community:

Keep communities safe

through the launch of the Work-Related Violence and
Aggression Strategy 2020-21 which aims to reduce
the rate of incidence of violence in our facilities

and community.

Create jobs in a strong economy

through more doctors, nurses and allied health
frontline staff and major infrastructure projects such
as Caboolture Hospital, Redcliffe Hospital and the
new public health facility Surgical, Treatment and
Rehabilitation Service (STARS) at Herston.
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Be a responsive government

through the Better Together Health Van, which provides
outreach education, health promotion and health
screening services to Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Islander people living on the northside of Brisbane.

Protect the Great Barrier Reef

through better waste management practices. The
Royal Brisbane and Women’s Hospital (RBWH)
introduced a food waste recycling program to
divert organic waste to compost instead of landfill.
The program will recycle 70 tonnes of food waste
each year.
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Message from the Board Chair and Chief Executive

The COVID-19 pandemic has put healthcare in the
international spotlight. Across Metro North, although
local cases have been relatively low, the scale and
breadth of our response has been impressive. Our
Metro North Health Emergency Operations Centre stood
up at the end of January, before the first Australian
confirmed patient. This early action has put Metro
North, and Queensland, in a strong position to confine
the outbreak and swiftly respond when needed.

Our response to COVID-19 has seen a rapid acceleration
in innovation, with virtual healthcare becoming more
prevalent. Changes to models of care and ways of
working were activated immediately as clinical and
non-clinical staff from across the organisation came
together to make things happen.

During 2019-20, Metro North increased our service
delivery. Emergency Department (ED) presentations
increased by 17,802 to 318,415, with 34,672
presentations to fever clinics. Admissions from

EDs reached 113,740. Despite pausing non-urgent
activity during our initial pandemic response, our staff
performed 42,698 emergency and elective surgeries.
We provided 1,558,938 outpatient occasions of
service, 55,492 more than the previous year. During
the height of the COVID-19 response, 67 per cent of
outpatient appointments were conducted via phone or
videoconferencing.

To meet this increase in demand, we invested $3.196
billion in healthcare, up from $2.874 billion the

previous financial year. Despite the challenges of the
pandemic, we achieved an operating surplus of $31.8

million, largely due to concerted efforts to maximise our

resources and reduce waste across the health service.

Jim McGowan AM
Chair

Metro North Hospital and Health Board

Metro North employed an additional 553 clinical staff
in medical, nursing and allied health positions. Our
total full-time equivalent staffing numbers grew from
16,184 t0 16,818 at the end of the financial year.

As part of our commitment to caring for staff, Metro
North developed a staff wellbeing strategy which was
adapted to provide specific support for staff directly
caring for COVID-19 patients. A Chief Wellbeing Officer
was also appointed to support staff wellbeing.

The Herston Quarter Redevelopment Project continued
with the Surgical, Treatment and Rehabilitation Service
(STARS) reaching its full height. STARS recruitment and
fit out were ongoing at the end of financial year. Work
continued on the Caboolture Hospital Redevelopment
Project with the interim emergency department
opening. Redcliffe Hospital redevelopment included
construction of the multistorey car park, additional
operating theatre, and refurbishment of the medical
imaging department.

2020-21 will see Metro North continue to be COVID-19
ready including both the careful monitoring of
hospital bed capacity and appropriate streaming of
patients whilst focusing on recovery of those services
that were delayed during the intense COVID-19
preparation period.

/W/

Shaun Drummond
Chief Executive
Metro North Hospital and Health Service
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ABOUT US

ABOUT US

Established on 1 July 2012 Metro North is an
independent statutory body overseen by a local
Hospital and Health Board under the Hospital and
Health Boards Act 2011 (Qld).

Strategic direction

The Metro North Strategic Plan 2016-2020 (revised
2019) outlines our future direction to 2020.

The Plan has been developed in the context of

the government’s Our Future State: Advancing
Queensland’s priorities and aligns to its objectives
to keep Queenslanders healthy and give all our
children a great start. The Plan also aligns to

the priorities in My health, Queensland’s future:
Advancing health 2026 in particular the direction
of pursuing innovation with a strong focus on
digital transformation.

Metro North will deliver responsive, integrated,
connected and quality frontline services to
strengthen the delivery of public health care
forthe people and communities we serve. Our
services will support equity of access and health
outcomes for all, particularly those who are at most
risk of poorer outcomes. Quality at Metro North

is founded on the individual person’s experience
with their care, and that of their family and support
networks.

A focus on people will enable us to improve the
patient experience, support and develop our staff
and work with our partners to better connect care
and improve outcomes. We will put our values
into action.
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Vision, Purpose, Values

Vision
Changing the face of health care through compassion,
commitment, innovation and connection.

Purpose
Create, connect and apply knowledge to deliver high
quality health services.

Values

Metro North Strategic Plan comprises five values:
e Respect

e Teamwork

e Compassion

e High performance

e |ntegrity

These Metro North values reflect the Queensland
Government values of Customers first, Ideas into action,
Unleash potential, Be courageous, and Empower people.



Priorities

The Metro North Strategic Plan includes the following
three objectives:

e toalways put people first

e toimprove health equity, access, quality, safety and
health outcomes

e todelivervalue based health services through
a culture of research, education, learning
and innovation.

The Metro North Health Service Strategy 2015-2020
has a five-year outlook setting out how Metro North
will achieve its Strategic Plan objectives. Significant
progress occurred in 2019-20 centred on:

e living healthy and well in our local communities

e delivering person-centred, connected and
integrated care

e effective delivery of healthcare to address growing
population health needs

e responsive holistic healthcare that meets the
specific needs of vulnerable groups including but
not limited to:

— older people including frail older people

— children

— young people

— people with mentalillness

— people with substance use disorder

— people with disabilities

— Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander peoples

— culturally and linguistically diverse
communities (CALD).

ABOUT US

Key achievements for 2019-20:

Redcliffe Hospital electrical infrastructure upgrade
($6.7M) including replacement of switchboards and
installation of more than 40km of cables.

Construction started on a new multistory carpark
for Redcliffe Hospital.

Caboolture Hospital interim ED expansion
completed including 16 new treatment spaces,
three new triage assessment rooms, dedicated
assessment areas for paediatric and mental health
patients and refurbished the existing waiting room
reception and triage.

Mental health short stay unit opened at Caboolture,
providing brief interventions for people presenting
with acute mental health concerns.

Completed construction of the Herston
Biofabrication Institute.

Opened the Brighton Health Campus pharmacy to
provide onsite medication dispensing and advice to
patients and residents.

Digital x-ray installed in 14 oral health clinics and
4 dental vans.

Opened the Queensland Sony You Can Centre at
Royal Brisbane and Women’s Hospital (RBWH) for
young people with cancer. The centre provides a
dedicated space away from hospital wards for 15-25
year old patients.

Continuation of the Herston Quarter Redevelopment
Project, particularly the progress of the new

public health facility Surgical, Treatment and
Rehabilitation Service (STARS).

Starting Well initiative at Caboolture provides
families with support in the community from
Caboolture Hospital midwives, Children’s Health
Queensland, and Brisbane North PHN.

Developed the DCoVA app to track and support
incoming travellers returning to Queensland as part
of the COVID-19 response.
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Progress in 2019-20 toward achieving the Metro North Strategic Plan:

Objective 1 - To always put people first

Improved patient / consumer
participation in Hospital and
Health Service activities by
25 per cent over the course of
the plan.

Consumer participation increased by 25 per cent since 2016 with
approximately 100 consumers participating in significant service planning,
service redesign / design and evaluation processes.

Established a Community Advisory Committee to the Metro North Board and
held an annual Board Community Engagement Forum.

Consumer involvement in the Metro North COVID-19 response including
input on communications such as factsheets, and visitor information for
hospitals.

Increase staff participation in
leadership development by at
least 10 per cent each year.

The introduction of the Leadership Essentials Program has more than
doubled staff participation in leadership development with 81 staff
completing the Leadership Essentials for Managers Program.

32 participants completed the Executive Leaders Program.

23 staff were awarded a Graduate Certificate in Health Services Innovation
and a further 86 staff are enrolled and expected to graduate within
two years.

Improved staff engagement
and satisfaction results by
5 per cent each year.

Staff participation in the inaugural Have Your Say survey as provided by
Best Practice Australia (BPA) achieved a 43 per cent response rate during
May/June 2019 survey period compared to 30 per cent response rate the
previous year for the Working for Queensland survey.

The survey will be held every 2 years and all directorates are addressing
survey results via action plans.

Objective 2 - To improve health equity, access, quality, safety and health outcomes

Increased number of joint
projects between Metro North
and its partners by 20 per cent
each year

Partnerships across the health sector including LINK (leading innovation
through networking and knowledge sharing) funded 6 collaborative
projects in 2019-20 (6 projects were also funded the previous year).

The Health Alliance (Metro North and Brisbane North PHN) initiatives
including GP access to expert advice, Care closer to home and in the home,
and Children of Caboolture (ensuring ongoing partnership and care for
children through the Starting Well Initiative).

Partnership with the Queensland Ambulance Service and Brisbane North
PHN to decrease falls in the community.

Work with primary care to support virtual care models.

Increased access to local
services for Caboolture and
Redcliffe residents to 60 per
cent of services provided close
to home each year.

56.9 per cent of patients who resided in the Redcliffe Hospital catchment
received their admitted care at Redcliffe Hospital.

58.9 per cent of patients who resided in the Caboolture Hospital catchment
received their admitted care at Caboolture Hospital.

80 per cent of key stakeholders
will attend Queensland Digital
Academy courses in 2019/20.!

COVID-19 shifted the focus of the Queensland Digital Academy (QDA) to
support the response with over 3000 instances of virtual training delivered
and the development of 190 quick reference guides and videos, being
accessed by Metro North and other hospital and health services to support
virtual ways of working including clinical care.

1

1

New indicator.
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ABOUT US

Objective 3 — To deliver value based health services through a culture of research, education, learning

and innovation.

Increase patient participation in
Metro North clinical trials and
clinical research by 10 per cent
each year.

The Cancer Care Clinical Stream has seen a 3.6% increase in patients
recruited to participate in clinical trials 2019-20 (445 patients in 2019-20
compared to 429 in 2018-19).

Metro North has established the Clinician Research Fellowships program,
specifically designed to enable clinician researchers to undertake a
program of work aligned to the Metro North Research Strategy and the
Metro North Strategic Plan.

Since 2019, 10 part-time (0.4FTE) Fellowships have been awarded in
the fields of Intensive Care Services, Renal Services, Dietetics, Speech
Pathology, Cancer Care, Endocrinology, Aged Care, Thoracic Medicine
and Urology.

Achieve sustainable operating
surpluses of up to two per cent
of annual turnover and deliver
positive financial results.

Metro North achieved a surplus of $31.8m for the year ended
30 June 2020.

Increase the percentage of new
Senior Medical Officer (SMO)
appointments with a higher
degree towards a target of

50 per cent.?

35% of new SMO appointments in 2019-20 have a masters or PHD
qualification.

Baseline information shows 26% of new SMO/VMO appointments had a
higher degree (completed or enrolled) in 2018.

2 New indicator. Reporting on this indicator is based on a sample of 51 new appointments.
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Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Islander Health

The Metro North Better Together: Aboriginal and e Opening of a newly relocated Aboriginal and Torres
Torres Strait Islander Health Plan 2019-2022 Strait Islander Hospital and Liaison service on level
is focused on four priority areas of Leadership, one of the RBWH designed to improve access and
Governance and Workforce; Engagement and enhance culturally safe environment.

Partnerships; Transparency, Reporting and
Accountability; and Culturally Responsive, Safe
and Connected Care.

e Indigenous Nurse Navigator roles established at
Community and Oral Health, Mental Health, The
Prince Charles Hospital, RBWH and Caboolture

Key achievements for 2019-20: and Redcliffe Hospitals to enhance a seamless

e 29 Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander transition across the patient journey.

students join the 2020 intake for the Deadly e Enhanced communications program specific to
Start program providing high school students improving health literacy and understanding
the chance to get a head start in their careers for Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander

and earn work experience in healthcare. patients, families and community. This includes

interagency partnerships and the development
of an external social media platform to increase
consumer engagement and feedback for
service improvements.

e Launch of the Better Together Health Van
with tele-health capabilities in addition to a
clinical space and screening equipment with a
dedicated senior project officer to engage and
partner with the community. e Working in partnership with the State-wide
response to COVID-19 to provide best practices,
clear pathways and support to internal and external
services in the delivery of cultural appropriate care
for Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander peoples.

e Partnering with the Institute of Urban
Indigenous Health on the Birthing in Our
Community model (BiOC) to enhance service
delivery within Ngarrama Maternity models of
care across the HHS.

e Introduction of the Better Together
Pharmaceutical Program aimed to provide
all Identified patients upon discharge from
a Metro North hospital / facility to receive
pharmaceuticals at no cost to the patient
to support equitable access to affordable
medication to reduce the burden of disease.

e All Metro North hospitals and directorates
Reconciliation Action Plan committees
established, with localised plans on track to be
launched in 2020.
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Our community based and
hospital based services

Metro North provides the full range of health services

including rural, regional and tertiary teaching hospitals.

It covers an area more than 4,000 square kilometres
and extends from the Brisbane River to north of Kilcoy.

Metro North provides services to patients throughout
Queensland, northern New South Wales and the
Northern Territory, incorporating all major health
specialties including medicine, surgery, psychiatry,
oncology, women’s and newborns, trauma and more
than 30 sub-specialties.

A comprehensive and diverse range of health services
are delivered from:

e RBWH and The Prince Charles Hospital (TPCH):
tertiary/quaternary referral facilities, providing
advanced levels of healthcare which are highly
specialised, such as heart and lung transplantation,
genetic health and burns treatment.

e Redcliffe and Caboolture Hospitals: major
community hospitals providing a comprehensive
range of services across the care continuum.

e Kilcoy Hospital: a regional community hospital.

e Mental Health, Community and Oral Health
services: provided from many sites including
hospitals, community health centres, residential
and extended care facilities and mobile service
teams.

e Adedicated Public Health Unit focused on
preventing disease, illness and injury and
promoting health and wellbeing across
the community.

e Woodford Correctional Centre: provides offender
health services.

e The state-wide Clinical Skills Development
Service is one of the world’s largest providers of
healthcare simulation training.

Metro North issued 29,875 passes in 2019-20 to
patients and their families and carers valued at
$330,256.35 under the Hospital Car Parking — Patient
and Carer Car Parking Concessions standard.

ABOUT US

Targets and challenges

Metro North supports the directions outlined in My
health, Queensland’s future: Advancing health 2026
by continuing to improve service for our patients and
families, optimising the potential of our people, being
adaptable and responsive to change, embedding an
organisational culture of ethical and fair decision
making, better connecting care across the health
continuum and across sectors, increasing our
commitment to research, adopting new technologies
and pursuing new and renewed infrastructure.

The key challenges for Metro North are service demand
growth, asset and infrastructure renewal and growth,
workforce capability and capacity, digital health
transformation, information and system security,
health source resourcing and system dependencies.

The Strategic Plan 2016-20 outlines how we will meet
the health needs of our growing population over the
duration of the plan.

In 2019-20 Metro North has:

e listened to the voice of patients and their carers and
families to improve the patient experience

e listened to staff and partners and involving them
in organisational development, governance and
decision making

e led integration, coordination and continuity of
services across and within primary, community and
hospital care creating system capacity

e generated new knowledge through research,
evaluating what others have learnt and actively
bringing this knowledge into practice

e created an environment that promotes innovative
approaches to support our people in continuous
improvement and organisational learning

e worked with our partners to ensure an appropriate
balance in health investment between prevention,
management and treatment of disease

e provided models of service delivery that are
fiscally responsible.

Metro North will continue to implement initiatives

in relation to the management of patients with
chronic diseases, children’s health, mental health,
and prioritise new initiatives across a range of areas
including Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander health
and kidney health services.
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GOVERNANCE

GOVERNANCE
Our people

Board membership

The Board is appointed by the Governor in Council
on the recommendation of the State Minister for
Health and Minister for Ambulance Services and

is responsible for the governance activities of the
organisation, deriving its authority from the Hospital
and Health Boards Act 2011 (Qld) and the Hospital
and Health Boards Regulation 2012 (Qld).

The functions of the Board include:

e developing the strategic direction and priorities
for the operation of Metro North

e monitoring compliance and performance

e ensuring safety and quality systems are in place
which are focused on the patient experience,
quality outcomes, evidence-based practice,
education and research

e developing plans, strategies and budgets
to ensure the accountable provision of
health services

e ensuring risk management systems are in place
and overseeing the operation of systems for
compliance and risk management reporting
to stakeholders

e establishing and maintaining effective systems to
ensure that the health services meet the needs of
the community.

The Board are all independent members,
strengthening local decision making and
accountability for health policies, programs and
services within Metro North. Each Board member
brings a wealth of experience and knowledge in
public, private and not-for-profit sectors with a range
of clinical, health and business experience.

During the reporting period, terms of office of

four members expired on 17 May 2020. Emeritus
Professor Robert Stable AM retired from the Board
following his significant contribution to Metro North
as Board Chair from May 2016. Board members

Mr Adrian Carson, Bonny Barry, Professor Mary-
Louise Fleming and Mr Geoff Hardy were reappointed
by Governor in Council in May 2020.

Mr Jim McGowan AM, former Board Chair of South
West Hospital and Health Service and Director-
General of the Department of Community Safety, was
appointed to the Board in May 2020.
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A schedule of Board Member attendance at Board
and Committee meetings for 2019-20 is available on
page 75.

Board meetings are held at Metro North facilities, with
the Board meeting in 2019-20 at RBWH, TPCH, Kilcoy
Hospital, Caboolture Hospital, Redcliffe Hospital,
Brighton Health Campus, at Metro North Oral Health
Centre at UQ Herston.

Chairs and members of government bodies (whether
they are paid or unpaid) are eligible to be reimbursed for
reasonable out-of-pocket-expenses including domestic
travel, accommodation costs, motor vehicle allowances
and meals. Metro North Board incurred $385.95 of out-
of-pocket expenses in 2019-20.

Board committees?

The following legislated committees support the
functions of the Board, each operating with terms of
reference describing the purpose, role, responsibilities,
composition, structure and membership.

Executive Committee

The role of the Executive Committee is to support the
Board by working with the Chief Executive to progress
strategic issues and ensure accountability in the
delivery of services within Metro North. The committee
oversees the development of the Strategic Plan and
monitors performance, the development of the clinician,
consumer and community engagement strategies

and the primary healthcare protocol, and works with
the Chief Executive in responding to critical and
emergent issues.

All Board Members are members of the
Executive Committee.

Safety and Quality Committee

The role of the Safety and Quality Committee is to
provide strategic leadership in relation to clinical
governance. The committee oversees the safety, quality
and effectiveness of health services and monitors
compliance with plans and strategies, while promoting
improvement and innovation for the safety and quality of
services within Metro North.

Committee membership: Dr Kim Forrester (Chair),
Dr Robert Franz, Professor Mary-Louise Fleming, and
Dr Paula Conroy.

1 Committee membership as at 30 June 2020.



Risk and Audit Committee

The role of the Risk and Audit Committee is to
oversee the internal and external audit function and
matters relating to risk and compliance for financial,
accounting and legislative requirements.

The committee provides independent assurance
and assistance to the Board on the risk, control and
compliance frameworks and external accountability
responsibilities as prescribed in the Financial
Accountability Act 2009, Auditor-General Act

2009, Financial Accountability Regulation 2009

and Financial and Performance Management
Standard 2019. The committee observed the terms
of its charter and had due regard to the Audit
Committee Guidelines.

Committee membership: Bernard Curran
(Chair), Dr Kim Forrester, Adrian Carson and
Associate Professor Kim Johnston.

Finance and Performance Committee

The role of the Finance and Performance Committee
is to oversee the financial performance, systems,
risk and requirements of Metro North. The committee
reviews the financial strategy, financial policies,
annual operating plans and capital budgets, cash
flows and business plans to ensure alignment with
key strategic priorities and performance objectives.

Committee membership: Geoff Hardy (Chair),
Bonny Barry, Neil Roberts, and Jim McGowan AM.

Other (non-legislated committees)

The Metro North and Brishane North PHN boards
recognise that the only way to address the health
needs of our population is to work together to build
on the strength of our entire primary, secondary
and tertiary health network. That is why both
organisations established a joint board committee
in 2017 comprising of the chairs, two members from
each board and the two chief executives.

Committee membership: Mr Jim McGowan (co-chair),
Mr Neil Roberts and Professor Mary-Louise Fleming.

GOVERNANCE

The Board Community Advisory Committee is Chaired
by Board member Professor Mary-Louise Fleming with
Deputy Chair Board member Dr Paula Conroy. The
committee has been established to guide the Metro
North Board and Executive to improve consumer
empowerment, experience and outcomes through:

e collaborative relationships across sectors to
improve continuity of care

e joint problem solving and sharing of resources for
sustainability across the health system

e shared information and insights across sectors
to deliver healthcare at the right time, in the
right place.

Membership includes eight representatives from
community partner organisations including the
Brisbane North PHN and at least one representative
from an Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander
organisation and one from a multicultural organisation.

In 2019-20, the Board held a consumer and community
engagement forum to inform the development of a new
four-year strategic plan.

The Board Improving Indigenous Outcomes Committee
is chaired by Board member Adrian Carson with
members comprising Professor Mary-Louise Fleming
and Ms Bonny Barry. The committee supports the
Board by:

e working with the health service chief executive
(HSCE) to implement the Metro North Hospital
and Health Service Better Together Aboriginal and
Torres Strait Islander Health Plan 2019-2022.

e meeting the requirements set out in the Hospital
and Health Boards Act 2011 and Hospital and Health
Boards Regulation 2012 for achieving health equity
for Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander people.
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GOVERNANCE

Mr Jim McGowan AM

B Econ, DipEd

Board Chair

Appointed: 18 May 2020

Current term: 18 May 2020 to 31 March 2024

Mr Jim McGowan AM was appointed Chair of the Metro
North Hospital and Health Board on 18 May 2020.

Jim was previously Chair of the South West Hospital
and Health Board and has significant high level

public administration experience, specialising in the
areas of governance, accountability, service delivery
improvement and performance management.

Mr McGowan is a former Director-General of the
Department of Community Safety, Department of
Emergency Services and Justice and Attorney General.
Since 2012, he has held the position of Adjunct
Professor, School of Government and International
Relations at Griffith University and in 2015 led the
review of the Queensland Industrial Relations system
and related legislation for the Queensland Government.
He has led the Taskforce on Occupational Violence

for Queensland’s Hospital and Health Services which
reported in June 2016, and in 2019 was a member of
the Expert Panel to provide advice to the Minister for
Health regarding Queensland Health’s Governance
Framework.

On Australia Day, 2012, Mr McGowan was made a
member of the Order of Australia (AM) “for service
to public administration in Queensland through the
development and implementation of public sector
management and training reforms and to improved
service delivery”.

As Director-General, Department of Community Safety
and Deputy Chair of the State Disaster Management
Group, Mr McGowan has led key response agencies and
co-ordinated the response to a range of disasters which
had serious and widespread impacts across Queensland
and the nation.

He holds a Bachelor of Economics and a Diploma of
Education from The University of Queensland and is also
a Commissioner of Declarations.

Dr Kim Forrester
RN, BA, LLB, LLM (Advanced), PhD, MAICD

Deputy Chair and Chair, Safety and Quality Committee
Appointed: 18 May 2013
Current term: 18 May 2018 to 17 May 2021

Dr Kim Forrester is a Registered Nurse and barrister at
law. Her clinical background includes intensive and
coronary care nursing. She is a member of the Australian
College of Nursing and established the Masters in
Emergency Nursing program at Griffith University where
she was also a foundation academic in the School
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of Medicine. Dr Forrester was previously an Associate
Professor, teaching health law in the Faculty of Health
Sciences and Medicine at Bond University and is now an
Honorary Adjunct Associate Professor.

As a barrister, Dr Forrester’s areas of legal practice
include coroner’s inquests, professional regulation

and child protection. She held the position of Assistant
Commissioner (legal) on the Queensland Health Quality
and Complaints Commission from 2006 to 2009, and is
a member of the Queensland Law Society’s Health and
Disability Law Committee. Dr Forrester was appointed as
Legal Member of the Mental Health Review Tribunal in
2020, and since 2015 is a Member of the Nursing Panel of
Assessors (formerly Nursing and Midwifery Panel) to the
Queensland Civil and Administrative Tribunal (QCAT) .

Dr Forrester is also the Chair of the Community Services
Commission, Anglicare Southern Queensland.

She publishes extensively in the area of health law and is
co-author of Essentials of Law for Health Professionals,
Australian Pharmacy Law and Practice and Essentials of
Law for Medical Practitioners.

Mr Adrian Carson
GCertHServMgt

Member and Chair, Improving Indigenous Outcomes
Board Committee (non-statutory)

Appointed: 18 May 2017
Current term: 18 May 2020 to 31 March 2024

Mr Adrian Carson joined Metro North in May 2017

and has nearly 30 years’ experience in Aboriginal and
Torres Strait Islander health across government and non
government organisations.

As the CEO of the Institute for Urban Indigenous Health,
Mr Carson plays a leading role in the coordination of
planning, development and delivery of comprehensive
primary healthcare and integrated social support services
to Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander communities
across South East Queensland. He has served as CEO

of Queensland Aboriginal and Islander Health Council
(QAIHQ), the peak body for the Aboriginal and Torres

Strait Islander Community Controlled Health Sector in
Queensland, and has previously worked with both the
Queensland and Australian Governments. Mr Carson has
held directorships on the National Aboriginal Community
Controlled Health Organisation (NACCHO), the Queensland
Aboriginal and Islander Health Council (QAIHC), the Lowitja
Institute, and the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander
Community Health Service Brisbane Ltd.

Mr Carson holds a Graduate Certificate in Health
Service Management from Griffith University and is
completing a Master of Business Administration from
The University of Queensland.



Mr Bernard Curran
BBus (QUT), FCA, FAICD, FTIA

Member and Chair, Risk and Audit Committee

Appointed: 18 May 2018
Current term: 18 May 2019 to 31 March 2022

Mr Bernard Curran is a Chartered Accountant and

has practiced in the areas of taxation and business
advisory for a range of clients and industry sectors
including healthcare over the past 30 years. He is a
Partner of BDO Qld and has held executive roles as well
as managing his client practice. He has had extensive
experience in mergers and acquisitions including firms
in the health sector. He is currently a Director of the
BDO Group.

Mr Curran has also held directorships on a number
of private company boards and serves as Chairand a
member of a number of Advisory Boards including in
the superannuation administration, contract cleaning
and fast moving consumable goods sectors.

Mr Curran holds a Bachelor of Business — Accountancy
from QUT. During 2017 he was appointed an Executive
in Residence — Visiting Fellow for the Accountancy
School at QUT.

He is a Fellow of Chartered Accountants Australia &
New Zealand, a Fellow of the Australian Institute of
Company Directors, and Fellow of the Taxation Institute
of Australia.

Mr Curran has been actively involved in serving on
not-for-profit Boards. He was the Chair of Créche and
Kindergarten Association Limited from 2012 to 2017.
He also served as a Director of Australian Children’s
Education & Care Quality Authority during 2014 and
2015. He became a Director of The Prince Charles
Hospital Foundation in 2008 and became Chair of its
Board in 2012 until December 2018. In 2017, he was
appointed to the Board of Governors of the Queensland
Community Foundation.

Ms Bonny Barry
RN BNsg, MAICD

Member and representative on The Prince Charles
Hospital Foundation Board

Appointed: 18 May 2016

Current term: 18 May 2020 to 31 March 2024

Ms Bonny Barry has been a Registered Nurse since
1980 and still works as a clinical nurse. An oncology
and palliative care specialist for many years, she has
worked in community, hospice, hospital and clinic
settings in Queensland and Victoria.

GOVERNANCE

Ms Barry is a committed trade unionist joining the RANF
as a student nurse in 1977, she spent six years as a
Professional Officer and Organiser for the QNU (now
QNMU) assisting nurses with their professional and
industrial practice.

Elected to the Queensland State Parliament in 2001,
she was State Member for Aspley for eight years, and
the Assistant Minister for Education, Training and the
Arts from 2006 to 2009.

Returning to nursing in 2012 after completing a re-entry
course at Central Queensland University, Ms Barry

has continued to work in the private sector as both a
community nurse in retirement villages and home care
and also works as a Nurse Care coordinator for one of
Queensland’s largest Indigenous health providers.

She brings diverse board and committee experience,
having served as a member of Metro North Board since
2016, as well as board appointments on Skillstech TAFE
Council, the Common Good (TPCH Foundation) and the
Australian Workers Heritage Centre at Barcaldine.

Ms Barry recently formally identified as an Aboriginal
woman and is committed to Closing the Gap.

Mr Geoff Hardy
B Bus (Econ), Dip HA, Grad Dip Commerce (Mkt), MAICD, AFCHSM

Member and Chair, Finance and
Performance Committee

Appointed: 18 May 2016

Current term: 18 May 2020 to 31 March 2024

Mr Geoff Hardy’s extensive career in healthcare
management has spanned over 30 years, including
operational roles at Royal North Shore Hospital,
Westmead, and the Royal Women’s Hospital in
Melbourne. After a period as Chief Executive at one of
Ramsay Healthcare’s facilities, he established and ran
their Malaysian subsidiary working closely with the
Malaysian Ministry of Health in the planning of several
major new facilities.

In addition to a period as a consultant to healthcare
organisations in Queensland, Mr Hardy has also worked
as CEO of two Brisbane law firms and was Global
Leader for a commercial advisory practice providing
strategic and commercial advice to government clients
around the world. Recently, he has worked more
broadly as an advisor to governments and private
sector clients on significant infrastructure projects in
the transport, healthcare and resources sectors. He is
currently leading a national team for Bickerton Masters,
a Brisbane based architectural and advisory firm
providing services to governments, not for profit and
healthcare organisations around Australia.
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Associate Professor

Kim Johnston

PhD, MBus, GradCertAcadPrac (QUT), BNurs (NTU),
GCertNurs (RPAH), FHEA, MAICD

Member and representative on the Royal Brisbane and
Women’s Hospital Foundation Board

Appointed: 18 May 2018
Current term: 18 May 2019 to 17 May 2021

Associate Professor Kim Johnston teaches at QUT
Business School, and researches in the areas of
community and stakeholder engagement, social
impact, and communication. She originally trained as
a Registered Nurse at Royal Prince Alfred Hospital and
worked in Sydney and Darwin in general surgical wards
before moving into marketing and communication roles
at News Limited, Nine Network, and for the Alcohol and
Other Drugs program in NT Health Services.

She moved to Queensland in 1997, working in

the Queensland Health’s capital works hospital
redevelopment program, and later as the
communication manager at The Prince Charles
Hospital. She joined QUT in 2002 as a full time
academic, completing her PhD in strategic
communication and organisational culture in 2011.
Since this time, Kim has been awarded more than
$1.3 million in competitive engagement related
research grants across government, private, and
non-profit sectors. She has also published more than
65 peer reviewed articles, conference papers, and
book chapters. She is lead editor of the Handbook

of Communication Engagement (Wiley, 2018) and is
on the editorial boards of Public Relations Review,
Corporate Communication International Journal, and
the Public Relations Society of America Journal. She
also holds a Masters of Business (Communication), a
Graduate Certificate in Academic Practice, a Bachelor of
Nursing, and a General Certificate of Nursing.

Professor Mary-Louise Fleming
BEd (QUT), MA (Ohio), PhD (Qld), MAICD

Member and Chair, Community Advisory Committee
(non-statutory)

Appointed: 18 May 2016
Current term: 18 May 2020 to 31 March 2024

Professor Mary-Louise Fleming is the former Head,
Corporate Education and the former Head, School of
Public Health in the Faculty of Health at the Queensland
University of Technology. She has experience in
teaching and research in higher education, public
health and health promotion for over 30 years.

Her research activity focuses on evaluation research
and translational research for the World Health
Organization, both Commonwealth and Queensland
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Governments, as well as consultancy projects for
Queensland Health and the not-for-profit sector.

Professor Fleming has co-authored four editions of two
text books on health promotion and public health, and
contributed to several other books.

Professor Fleming is a Board member of Wesley Medical
Research Institute and Chairs the Research Committee.

Her appointments have included Health Promotion
Queensland, Board of the Wesley Research Institute,
Board of Governors St Andrew’s Hospital, National
Heart Foundation, the Queensland Cancer Fund and
Chair of the Quality Management Committee for
BreastScreen Queensland. She was also a member
of the Queensland Government Ministerial Oversight
Committee, Advancing Health 2026.

She has an active consultancy practice involving
reports on policy and practice for single health issues,
policy development and implementation, and reviews
and evaluation of numerous projects and programs.

Mr Neil Roberts
MBA, BBus, GradCertDisRes, GAICD

Member

Appointed: 18 May 2019
Current term: 18 May 2019 to 31 March 2022

Mr Neil Roberts is a former Cabinet Minister in the
Queensland Government. He was Minister for the
challenging portfolios of Police, Corrective Services
and Emergency Services (including the Queensland
Ambulance Service, Queensland Fire and Rescue
Service and Emergency Management Queensland).
He brings to the Board significant experience in the
oversight of frontline service delivery agencies.

Mr Roberts has previously served as a member of
various government and non-government committees
including the Dental Board of Australia’s Queensland
Registration and Notifications Committee and
Australian Catholic University’s Queensland Chapter
Advisory Board.

As a Member of Parliament, Mr Roberts chaired various
Parliamentary Committees including Budget Estimates
Committees and the Public Works Committee. He also
served as Assistant Minister (Parliamentary Secretary)
in a range of portfolios including Families, Communities
and Disability Services, Employment and Training,
Treasury and State Development.

He holds a Master of Business Administration
(Corporate Governance) and a Bachelor of Business.



Dr Paula Conroy
BSc, MBBS, DCH, FRACGP, GAICD

Member and Deputy Chair, Community Advisory
Committee (non-statutory)

Appointed: 18 May 2018
Current term: 18 May 2019 to 31 March 2022

Dr Paula Conroy has over 10 years’ experience working
within the primary care, hospital and corporate health
sectors.

Dr Conroy is a General Practitioner with a particular
interest in preventative health and integrated care.
During her time working in the hospital setting, Dr
Conroy spent a number of years in both emergency
medicine and general surgery. In the corporate

sector Dr Conroy worked for two of the largest health
insurance companies in Australia, Bupa and Medibank
Private.

Dr Conroy is passionate about medical training and
she has served as both a clinical supervisor for The
University of Queensland School of Medicine and

a clinical teacher with General Practice Training
Queensland.

She has held positions on the Queensland Faculty
Council of the Royal Australian College of General
Practitioners and with Brisbane NorthPHN. Dr Conroy is
currently the Medical Director for COORDINARE, South
Eastern New South Wales PHN.

Dr Conroy brings her experience as both a GP

and hospital trained clinician to the board. She is
committed to continuous improvement particularly
around the integration between primary healthcare
and the hospital system and the role this plays

in maintaining Australia’s world class health and
hospital system.

GOVERNANCE

Dr Robert Franz
MBBS, FRACS, GCM

Member

Appointed: 18 May 2019
Current term: 18 May 2019 to 17 May 2021

Dr Robert Franz is the Director of Surgery at The
Prince Charles Hospital (TPCH) and a consultant
general surgeon. With nearly 30 years experience
in general surgery, Dr Franz chairs Statewide
committees for the Department of Health including
the Queensland Surgical Advisory Committee

and the Advanced Specialised Surgical Training
Consultative Committee.

Dr Franz also had a particular interest in rural
surgery where he was the director of Surgery for
Toowoomba Base Hospital from 1991 to 2007; and
was instrumental in the curriculum establishment
for the rural doctors training program.

He has previously been a member of, and held the
role of Chair, for a number of clinical committees
including TPCH Surgical and Anaesthetic Services
Committee (Chair), TPCH Gastrointestinal Services
Advisory Group (Chair) and Rural Surgical Services
Committee (Chair). Dr Franz also brings extensive
medico-legal experience including WorkCover and
AHPRA Expert Independent Assessor.

Emeritus Professor Robert Stable AM appreciation of service

Emeritus Professor Robert Stable AM retired from the Board in May 2020.

Professor Stable’s 50-year career in health has included roles as a nursing orderly, a rural and remote
General Practitioner, a Flying Doctor, Hospital Medical Superintendent and Chief Executive, Director-General
of the Queensland Department of Health, Member and Chair of the Australian Health Ministers’ Advisory
Council, Vice-Chancellor and President of Bond University and Non-Executive Board Director/Member.

Metro North has benefited greatly from Professor Stable’s leadership and commitment to working
collaboratively with healthcare partners, clinicians, support staff and consumers as well as all levels of
government to deliver better health services to Queenslanders.

Appointed as Chair of Metro North Board in May 2016, Professor Stable frequently remarked that he enjoyed
each and every day in the role and expressed his pride at the dedicated work of all Metro North Staff to
deliver high quality patient care and serve the community.
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Executive management

The Board appoints the Health Service Chief
Executive (HSCE) and delegates the administrative
function of Metro North to the HSCE and those
officers to whom management is delegated. The
HSCE’s responsibilities are:

e managing the performance and activity outcomes
for Metro North

e providing strategic leadership and direction for
the delivery of public sector health services in
the hospital and health service

e promoting the effective and efficient use of
available resources in the delivery of public
sector health services in the hospital and
health service

e developing service plans, workforce plans and
capital works plans

e managing the reporting processes for
performance review by the Board

e liaising with the executive team and receiving
committee reports as they apply to established
development objectives

e the HSCE may delegate the Chief Executive’s
functions under the Hospital and Health Boards
Act 2011 to an appropriately qualified health
executive or employee.
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Health Service Chief Executive

Mr Shaun Drummond

As Chief Executive of Metro North, Mr Drummond

is responsible for the day to day management of
one of Australia’s largest public health authorities.
Mr Drummond has held comparable roles in New
South Wales, Victoria and New Zealand. In this

role, Mr Drummond has led high profile projects
including the Surgical, Treatment and Rehabilitation
Service (STARS), the Biofabrication Institute, and
the Patient Access Coordination Hub.

Adjunct Professor Jackie Hanson

Jackie Hanson was Acting Chief Executive from

1 May 2019 — 29 January 2020 while Shaun
Drummond was on secondment as Chief Executive
of Metro South Hospital and Health Service.

Ms Hanson has extensive leadership experience in
executive, strategic and senior operational roles
spanning more than 12 years across public health
systems in Queensland and South Australia.

As Chief Operating Officer, she has made significant
achievements strengthening staff engagement and
redesigning care. Ms Hanson is a Registered Nurse,
and holds a bachelor degree in Nursing Science
and, in 2019, was appointed Adjunct Professor with
Queensland University of Technology (QUT).



The following Senior Executive positions support the
HSCE in the development and execution of the Metro
North strategy as approved by the Board. The list
includes the names of incumbents as at 30 June 2020.

Chief Operating Officer
Adjunct Professor Jackie Hanson

Chief Finance and Corporate Officer
Ms Melissa MacCabe

Executive Director Safety and Quality
Mr Mark Butterworth (Acting)

Executive Director Clinical Services
Dr Elizabeth Whiting

Chief Digital Health Officer
DrJason Brown (Acting)

Chief Wellbeing Officer
Mr Bruce Sullivan (Acting)

Executive Director Strategy and Planning
Ms Colleen Jen

Executive Director Assets and Infrastructure
Ms Kate Copeland

PROFESSIONAL LEADS

Executive Director Medical Services
Dr Elizabeth Rushbrook

Executive Director Nursing and Midwifery Services
Adjunct Professor Alanna Geary

Executive Director Allied Health
Ms Michelle Stute (Acting)

DIRECTORATE EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Executive Director
Royal Brisbane and Women’s Hospital
Dr David Rosengren

Executive Director
The Prince Charles Hospital
Ms Michele Gardner

Executive Director Redcliffe Hospital
Ms Louise Oriti

Executive Director Caboolture and Kilcoy Hospitals
Ms Angie Dobbrick (Acting)

Executive Director Community and Oral Health Services
Ms Tami Photinos

Executive Director Mental Health Services
Professor Brett Emmerson AM

Executive Director Clinical Support Services
Mr Adam Scott (Acting)

GOVERNANCE

CLINICAL STREAM EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Executive Director Heart and Lung
Dr Elizabeth Whiting (Acting)

Executive Director Medicine
Dr Jeffrey Rowland

Executive Director Surgery
DrJason Jenkins

Executive Director Emergency Medicine and Access
Coordination
Dr Chris May

Executive Director Women’s and Children’s
Professor Leonie Calloway

Executive Director Cancer Care
Associate Professor Glen Kennedy
RESEARCH

Executive Director Research
Professor Jennifer Strong
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Organisational structure and workforce profile

Deputy Premier
Minister for Health
Minister for Ambulance Services

Metro North Hospital and Health Board Board Committees

(legislated):
¢ Executive Committee
e Safety and Quality
Committee
Communit . . . . :
Advisoryy Clinical Improving Indigenous * Finance and Performance
. nci i Committee
Committee Councils Outcomes Committee .o tt '
e Risk and Audit
Committee
Internal Audit
Health Service Chief Executive
Integrity Unit
Executive Director, Chief Finance and Chief Operating Executive Director, Chief
—  Medical Services — Corporate Officer Officer Clinical Services Wellbeing  —
Clinical Directorates Clinical Streams Officer
e e Royal Brisbane and Heart and Lung
ecutive Director, Executive Director, Women’s Hospital . ief Digi
™ Allied Health — i Medicine Chief Digital
Safety and Quality The Prince Charles Suree Health Officer
Hospital ursery
A q . Emergency Medicine and
L Executive Director, L Executive Director, S LN Access Coordination

Nursing and Hospitals

Midwifery Services Strategy and

Planning Redcliffe Hospital SR B T

Community and Oral S
Health Services Research
Mental Health

Clinical Support Services

Assets and Infrastructure
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Table 1: More doctors and nurses*

GOVERNANCE

Medical staff? 1,913 1,976 2,054 2,120
Nursing staff? 6,324 6,512 6,759 6,864
Allied Health staff 2 2,015 2,162 2,219 2,261

Table 2: Greater diversity in our workforce*

Persons identifying as being 158

First Nations ®

165 181 198

Note: * Workforce is measured in MOHRI - Full-Time Equivalent (FTE). Data presented reflects the most recent pay cycle at year’s end.

Data presented is to Jun-20.

Source: * DSS Employee Analysis, ® Queensland Health MOHRI, DSS Employee Analysis

Changes to employer arrangements came into effect from
15 June 2020. These changes mean all non-executive
health service employees in HHSs will be employed by
the Director-General as system manager of Queensland
Health. The changes ensure we have clear and consistent
employer arrangements for non-executive health service
employees in all HHSs and reflects the fact that staff work
for the health of all Queenslanders, regardless of the
hospital or HHS they are based in.

Strategic workforce planning
and performance

Metro North’s total FTE as at 30 June 2020 is 16,818.
Metro North’s separation rate for 2019-20 was 4.76 per
cent. This reflects the number of FTE permanent employees
who separated during the year as a percentage of FTE
permanent employees.

To help Metro North achieve its strategic plan objective

of Putting People First and becoming one of the top 20
places to work in the country, Metro North is committed to
implementing its Values in Action framework.

Metro North’s strategic workforce planning approach
influences and promotes our value-based culture through
strategic partnerships and collaboration, supporting
excellence in patient centred care.

We enable the effective recruitment, development and
retention of our high performing and diverse workforce. We
foster a healthy, safe and inclusive work environment that
maximises individual and organisational potential.

Our professional streams (medical, nursing and midwifery,
and allied health) work across directorates, professions and
clinical streams to support just-in-time and medium-term
workforce and succession planning and provide a range of
inter-professional learning programs to their workforce to
develop Metro North’s future leaders.

Key achievements for 2019-20:

e Provided an agile response to COVID-19 business
requirements to ensure the wellbeing of our workforce
whilst providing safe and high-quality patient care. This
included:

— recruitment campaigns and design of accelerated
recruitment processes

— transition support and guidance for reallocation of
team members

— workforce engagement through the establishment
of contact centres and communication hubs e.g. HR
hotline, representation at industrial forums and the
digital design and delivery for cultural orientation

— feverclinic risk assessments and increasing WH&S
regulator engagement

— development of the Metro North COVID-19
Wellbeing framework and interventions.

e Preparation for prescribed employer changes across the
HHS including:

— Health & Safety transition working group provided
guidance to the Department of Health on Incident
Response Standard, Governance Standard, SMS
Framework, and WHS RiskMan Minimum Data Set

— delegation alignment
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e Launched the inaugural Leadership Essentials
program giving 81 graduates increased capability
across organisational boundaries, building self-
reliance, self-confidence, self-awareness, and
business acumen.

e Worked closely with facilities and directorates to
implement actions plans following the inaugural Metro
North Have Your Say staff survey.

e Commenced the Health and Safety Activity Calendar
2020 across the HHS with a focus on topics such
as early intervention presentation, equipment and
maintenance, and workers’ compensation.

e Provided workforce planning, recruitment, and
on-boarding support to the Surgical Treatment
and Rehabilitation Service (STARS) project team in
readiness for the public health facility opening in
early 2021.

e Enhanced online reporting, through the myHR
performance dashboard. The dashboard provides
data on the processing of workforce management
information such as leave, employee movements and
personal information.

e Improved online rostering through the implementation
of the Workbrain rostering system. Metro North
has led the statewide rollout of the system with the
successful implementation of two pilot projects, which
are now fully operational allowing real time rostering
and maintenance in the workplace.

e Relaunched the general Code of Conduct into three
distinct components: Code of Conduct, Public Interest
Disclosure (PID), and Fraud Control Awareness
achieving 80% compliance one month following
the launch.

e Established and maintained effective union
relationships through formal regular meetings.

Early retirement, redundancy
and retrenchment

No redundancy, early retirement, or retrenchment
packages were paid during the period.

Our risk management

Metro North’s risk management system aligns with the
Australian/New Zealand Standard 1S031000:2009 on
risk management principles and guidelines and the
National Safety and Quality Health Service Standard 1,
Clinical Governance.

Metro North is committed to a philosophy and culture
that values open, fair and equitable behaviours, and
that encourages staff members to proactively manage
risk. The Board has communicated a zero tolerance
for preventable patient harm as the key organising
principle for all risk identification, assessment,
treatment, monitoring and reporting.
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The 2016-2020 (revised 2019) Metro North strategic
plan identifies nine overarching strategic risks:

e assetand infrastructure

e digital transformation

e workforce capability and capacity
e health service resourcing

e quality and safety

e information and system security
e conduct and culture

e system dependencies

e adaptability

Metro North’s directorates and support services
are responsible for identifying and managing
operational risks.

The Board also monitors organisational and
operational risks and ensures that appropriate action
is taken to mitigate and manage risks appropriately.

The Hospital and Health Boards Act 2011 requires
annual reports to state each direction given by the
Minister to the HHS during the financial year and the
action taken by the HHS as a result of the direction.
During the 2019-20 period, no directions were given
by the Minister to the Metro North HHS.

Key achievements for 2019-20:

e the Board endorsed a risk appetite statement
for Metro North which is used to guide the
organisation’s decision making and management
of risks.

e the Board endorsed the strategic risks which are
regularly reviewed to ensure that risks that have
a potential to impact the achievement of Metro
North’s strategic objectives are identified and
managed effectively.

e Metro North’s annual risk review provided a
comprehensive overview of the current risk
profile to assist with the identification of possible
gaps in risk coverage and consider what future
risks may potentially threaten the successful
achievement of objectives.

e Metro North continues to improve its risk
management system maturity through
enhancements in risk analysis and reporting
capability, increased use of data dashboards
using RiskMan (central application repository)
for clinical incidents, feedback, and risk and
case modules to assist in identifying and
mitigating risks.



Internal Audit

The internal audit function provides an independent
and objective assurance and consulting service to
management and the Board. The audits undertaken
are risk-based and are designed to evaluate and
improve the effectiveness of risk management,
control and governance processes.

The function operates with due regard to Queensland
Treasury’s Audit Committee Guidelines, a Board
approved Charter and contemporary internal audit
standards. Overall service delivery and audit
operations are aligned with the Institute of Internal
Auditors — Australia, International Professional
Practices Framework (IPPF). The IPPF provides a
proven, professional, ethical and defendable audit
framework. This framework supports the delivery of
effective, efficient and economical audits.

Annual and strategic audit plans are developed
in consideration of the Board’s risk management
(strategic and operational risks) and governance
processes, designed and maintained by
management. Following consultation with
management and members of the risk and audit
committee, the audit plans are approved by the
Board.

The delivery of audits is assisted through a co-
source partnership arrangement using several
global consulting firms. These firms provide subject
matter experts and lead audits requiring specialist
knowledge and skills. Although the function liaises
regularly with the Queensland Audit Office (QAO) it
remains independent of the QAO.

Key achievements for 2019-20:

During the period, Internal Audit finalised* or
completed* 22 internal audits covering both clinical
and non-clinical risk areas including:

e postimplementation review of the S/4HANA
system, adequacy of ITDR plans for Metro North,
and ieMR project governance and controls

e payroll - review of staff separation processes,
and leave management within a speciality area
Discharge against medical advice processes,
environmental and ligature risks at Mental
Health, and management of patient waitlists

e review of medication managed by the dispensing
robot and pyxis machines

e managing Metro North’s social media platforms.

GOVERNANCE

External Scrutiny

The operations of Metro North are subject to
regular scrutiny and validation from numerous
external agencies.

In 2019-20, all Clinical Directorates underwent
accreditation assessment under the National
Standards, by the Australian Council on Health Care
Standards (ACHS). While some assessments are
still to be finalised, on 25 March 2020 the ACHS
advised that the accreditation status of our Services
will be maintained during the response phase of the
COVID-19 pandemic.

There are two Residential Aged Care Facilities (RACF)
in Metro North, Gannet House and Cooinda House.

Gannet House underwent an Accreditation visit from
the Aged Care Safety and Quality Commission on

2 to 4 September 2019. A return visit to address
several recommendations was conducted by the
Commission on the 19 December 2019 to review and
assess the progress made. This resulted in a notice
of full Accreditation for a period of three years from
December 2019.

Cooinda House is accredited until the end of
January 2021 and is awaiting confirmation from the
Commission that they are accepting applications for
renewal. Once this is received, Cooinda House will
submit its application for renewal to the Aged Care
Quality and Safety Commission.

The Halwyn Centre provides care for people with
profound disabilities. In addition to the ACHS
Accreditation, it also underwent and successfully
obtained Accreditation against the Human Services
Standards on the 24 to 27 June 2019 by SAI Global.
New National Disability Insurance Scheme (NDIS)
Practice Standards also came into effect for the
Halwyn Centre as of the 1 July 2019. To meet this
requirement, Halwyn was included in the Metro North
two stage accreditation process conducted by SAI
Global. Stage 1 consisted of a desk top audit from
16 to 18 December 2019. Stage 2 was conducted
from 17 to 19 February 2020 and incorporated site
visits. Following the completion of this, the Halwyn
Centre received a Report from SAl Global that
highlighted a number of minor non-conformities and
a timeline for improvement. Actions have been taken
to address the minor non-conformities, and the final
Report has not yet been received by Metro North.

* Finalised — Audit report has been considered and approved for release by the Chief Executive and Risk and Audit Committee

* Completed — Audit report will be tabled at the next Risk and Audit Committee meeting or report is with management for response.
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In 2019-2020, Parliamentary reports tabled by
the Auditor-General which broadly considered the
performance of Metro North included:

e Health: 2018-19 results of financial audits
(Report 7: 2019-20)

The recommendations contained within Auditor-
General reports were considered and action was taken
to implement recommendations or address any issues
raised, where appropriate. In addition, Metro North
continues to use the Digitising public hospitals (Report
10: 2018-19) to inform the rollout of ieMR across
Metro North.

Metro North also considered the findings and
recommendations of several other reports to inform its
service delivery and planning:

e Managing cyber security risks (Report 3: 2019-20)

e Addressing mine dust lung disease
(Report 9: 2019-20)

e Evaluating majorinfrastructure projects
(Report 14: 2019-20).

Metro North periodically works with the Crime and
Corruption Commission across a number of areas to
maintain a robust crime and corruption prevention
framework. In 2019-20, Metro North considered the
findings and recommendations from the Crime and
Corruption Commission Operation Impala — a report on
misuse of confidential information in the Queensland
public sector and informed its policies and practices,
where relevant.

Information systems and record keeping

Metro North is committed to making the best use of the
information it holds in a way that promotes public trust
in how we handle, protect and disclose personal and
sensitive information.

As part of its information governance program, Metro
North has formally appointed data custodians for its
patient care, research and corporate information.

In terms of access to information by the public, in
2019-2020, Metro North across its facilities processed
more than 12,500 applications for information.

This translates to 1.57m pages processed through
administrative access and legislative mechanisms

like Right to Information and Information Privacy
applications. Most of this is related to patient care,
however applications are also received relating to wider
policy questions and from media outlets, political and
non-government organisations.
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Metro North continues to implement the requirements
of the Records Governance Policy, issued in June
2018, with a focus on increasing records management
awareness, capability and maturity. Examples include
formal assignment of information management roles
including the establishment of a Manager, Corporate
Information Management, and an Information
Management Working Group to support our focus to
build digital capability across Metro North.

Significant enhancements to the electronic Document
and Records Management System (eDRMS) were
introduced to improve compliance with the Public
Records Act 2002 and Records Governance Policy
including implementation of the Queensland
Government Information Security Classification
Framework. In addition, a comprehensive configuration
review was undertaken to maximise functionality

to improve the capture, creation, maintenance,
management and retention of Metro North’s corporate
records in accordance with Queensland State Archives
General Retention and Disposal Schedule.

’

The Corporate Information Management team
continues to develop eDRMS and corporate records
management training for administration officers in
our health community teams to raise awareness of
information policy and recordkeeping obligations.

Queensland Public Service ethics

Metro North continues to uphold the principles of the
Public Sector Ethics Act 1994: Integrity and impartiality;
Promoting the public good; Commitment to the system
of government; and Accountability and transparency.

On 25 May 2020, innovations to our mandatory training
program for Code of Conduct, Public Interest Disclosure,
and Fraud Control Awareness were implemented.
Previously incorporated into a single Code of Conduct
module, these topics have been split into three distinct
components to address the recommendations from

the Queensland Audit Office (QAQ). This change also
improves our alignment to the Queensland Health
Orientation, Induction and Mandatory Training Policy.

All employees are now required to renew training for
each module every two years.

Metro North’s Talent Management System (TMS) and
its program of on-line learning continue to facilitate our
compliance with mandatory training in these areas.

The online training modules are further supported
and enhanced with face to face and fully tailored
training to employees and line managers focussed
on specific ethical risks identified at the local level.



Delivered by our network of HR Business Partners
across Metro North, these sessions are provided in
response to incidents of specific risk or to address
trends in employee misconduct indicating a training or
coaching intervention.

Human Rights

Metro North is committed to enabling our community

to enjoy their human rights in our health services in
accordance with achieving our vision of excellent person-
centred health care. Accordingly, when the Queensland
Parliament introduced the Human Rights Act 2019 (Qld)
(‘Act’) we developed a plan and strategy to help develop
a culture that respects, protects and promotes human
rights across Metro North.

During this reporting period, a key priority for Metro
North was implementing these plans and strategies
ahead of our obligations commencing on 1 January 2020.

Actions taken during this reporting period to implement
the Act at Metro North include:

e engagement with third-party contractors and
service providers to raise their awareness of the
Act, their potential obligations and need to develop
plans to implement their obligations.

e education and training including delivery of over 20
face to face sessions to business units, Metro North
Committees, key consumer groups and Queensland
Human Research Ethics Committees. Website
materials and weekly broadcasts to staff have also
been delivered.

e providing patients, consumers and staff with
important information to protect their human
rights during COVID-19. For example, sharing
Queensland Government publications on COVID-19
Testing for First Nations Communities, Protection
and Containment Considerations for First Nations
Communities and Protecting human rights of people
in locked environments during COVID-19.

e supportto frontline health services to act and make
decisions that are compatible with human rights
and the Act. For instance, during COVID-19, advising
on documents regarding the use of personal
protective equipment, promoting access to health
care in quarantine facilities and protecting the
security of all individuals in our health service.

e developing complaint and reporting processes to
record details of any human rights complaints from
patients, consumers and staff.

e explicit recognition of our Metro North’s
commitment to respecting, protecting and

GOVERNANCE

promoting Human Rights in the new Metro North
Strategic Plan 2020-2024.

e reviewed more than 265 Metro North policies,
procedures and other documents to ensure we
act and make decisions in compliance with the
Act. A proper consideration of human rights is a
mandatory requirement for any new document,
practice or service created at Metro North.

From 1 January 2020 to 30 June 2020, Metro North has
recorded 117 human rights complaints. To date, human
right complaints have been largely resolved locally and
responded to on a case-by-case basis. The vast majority
of these complaints have been resolved by an apology,
explanation and/or business improvement (such as
staff training or development of procedures). Some have
been resolved by disciplinary actions. One complaint
isin litigation and mentions human rights. Ongoing
implementation of the Act, further education and
training on the Act and updates to our recording systems
will focus on improvements to complaints management
processes and reporting.

Table 3: Summary of human rights complaints received
in 2019-20

Total Rights engaged Outcomes
number of
Human right
complaints
received for
reporting
period
117 The complaints Approximately
mainly involve the 50% were
following human resolved by
rights although not an apology,
specifically mentioned explanation
in most cases: and/or business
* Section 15 - improvement.
. Approximately
Recognition and
. 13% by
equality before the S
law: disciplinary
sy RO
- Protection oneoing and
from torture, soing
further steps

cruel, inhuman
or degrading
treatment;
* Section 25 - Privacy
and reputation; and
* S 37 - Right to health
services.

are being taken
to resolve them
appropriately.

At Metro North, we will continue our commitment to
provide our community with excellent person-centred
health care that is consistent with their human rights.
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PERFORMANCE

Confidential information

The Hospital and Health Boards Act 2011 requires annual reports to state the nature and purpose of any
confidential information disclosed in the public interest during the financial year. During the 2019-20 period,
two disclosures were authorised in relation to specified patient information:

e two data sets of information regarding a patient were disclosed to the Office of Information Commission
forthe purpose of obtaining expert opinion regarding the data sets and Metro North’s obligations.

e provision of patient details and other information to the Queensland Police Services (and/or other law
enforcement) for the purpose of an ongoing investigation and/or prosecution.

Performance

Service standards

Following the suspension of all non urgent elective Metro North’s COVID-19 response comprised
surgery due to COVID-19, Metro North resumed full expenditure on staffing for the Emergency Operations
elective surgery services at the end of May 2020 Centre, Fever Clinics, preparedness for expansion of ED

and ICU capacity, Virtual Ward, Clinical Consumables
and PPE, public health contact tracing and screening
and COVID-19 testing.

Telehealth appointments for outpatients increased
during this period.

Own source revenue was impacted as a result of
the reduction of elective surgery and the impact of
ineligible patients.

Table 4: Service Standards — Performance 2019-20

Service Standards Target Actual
EFFECTIVENESS MEASURES

Percentage of patients attending emergency departments
seen within recommended timeframes: 2

— Category 1 (within 2 minutes) 100% 99.8%
— Category 2 (within 10 minutes) 80% 74.4%
— Category 3 (within 30 minutes) 75% 63.4%
— Category 4 (within 60 minutes) 70% 79.5%
— Category 5 (within 120 minutes) 70% 97.1%
Percentage of emergency department attendances who depart within »80% 69.9%

four hours of their arrival in the department @

Percentage of elective surgery patients treated within clinically recommended times: ®

— Category 1 (30 days) »98%  96.4%*
— Category 2 (90 days) »95% 91.0%
— Category 3 (365 days) »95% 92.7%
Rate of healthcare associated Staphylococcus aureus (including MRSA) bloodstream (SAB) 2 0.8?

infections/10,000 acute public hospital patient days ¢

Rate of community follow-up within 1-7 days following discharge from an acute mental health »65% 58.0%
inpatient unit¢

1 Non urgent elective surgery and specialist outpatient services were temporarily suspended as part of COVID-19 preparation.
Seen in time performance and service volumes were impacted as a result.

2 The Epidemiology and Research Unit in the Communicable Diseases Branch are unable to provide full year SAB data as
resources are redirected to the COVID-19 response. SAB data presented as Mar-20 FYTD and is preliminary.

3 Readmission to acute Mental Health inpatient unit data presented as May-20 FYTD.

4 Cost per WAU data presented as Mar-20 FYTD
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Proportion of readmissions to an acute mental health inpatient unit within 28 days of discharge ¢ A2%  14.4%°
Percentage of specialist outpatients waiting within clinically recommended times: ¢

— Category 1 (30 days) 56%  82.5%!
— Category 2 (90 days) 70% 61.2%
- Category 3 (365 days) 94% 85.5%
Percentage of specialist outpatients seen within clinically recommended times: ®

— Category 1 (30 days) 81%  82.4%!
— Category 2 (90 days) 62% 64.0%
— Category 3 (365 days) 89% 88.1%
Median wait time for treatment in emergency departments (minutes) ? 18
Median wait time for elective surgery (days) 36
Efficiency Measure

Average cost per weighted activity unit for Activity Based Funding facilities s $4,549  $4,931*
Other Measures

Number of elective surgery patients treated within clinically recommended times: ®

— Category 1 (30 days) 10,276 10,1901
— Category 2 (90 days) 11,184 9,446
- Category 3 (365 days) 6,123 5,465
Number of Telehealth outpatient occasions of service events " 18,442 27,650
Total weighted activity units (WAU’s) &

Acute Inpatient 283,939 276,404°
Outpatients 101,656 88,980
Sub-acute 23,835 26,554
Emergency Department 42,612 43,422
Mental Health 37,438 35,077
Prevention and Primary Care 9,741 8,170
Ambulatory mental health service contact duration (hours) ¢ »171,919 149,074
Staffing 16,860 16,851°

5 Delivery of activity and weighted activity units was impacted by two significant factors in 2019-20; the introduction of a revised Australian Coding Standard “0002 Additional
diagnoses” from 1 July 2019, resulted in lower weighted activity units being calculated for admitted patients relative to the same casemix of 2018-19 yearand COVID-19
preparation and the temporary suspension of non urgent planned care services reduced the volume of patient activity. Activity data presented is preliminary. Data presented is

fullyearas at 17 August 2020.
6 Asat30]June 2020.

Source: a) Emergency Data Collection, b) Elective Surgery Data Collection, c) Communicable Diseases Unit, d) Mental Health Branch, e) Specialist Outpatient Data Collection, f) DSS
Finance, g) GenWAU, h) Monthly Activity Collection, i) DSS Employee Analysis. Note: Targets presented are full year targets as published in 2019-20 Service Delivery Statements.

Financial summary
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Metro North achieved a surplus of $31.8m for the year Whilst there is a National Partnership Agreement to
ending 30 June 2020. support healthcare COVID-19 costs, not all costs including

This financial year has presented significant challenges

loss of revenue are eligible for compensation.

with the outbreak of Novel Coronavirus or COVID-19 in Despite the impacts of COVID-19, Metro North has
early 2020. delivered on all health care activity requirements under

In March 2020, the Commonwealth and States entered
into a National Partnership on COVID-19 response. Under
this agreement the parties agreed to work togetherin
response to the COVID-19 pandemic and to jointly fund
additional health expenditure incurred to effectively
manage the COVID-19 outbreak. Additional funding of
$42.9 million has been included in this year’s revenue in
relation to this agreement.

the Service Agreement with the Department of Health.
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Revenue and expenditure

Metro North’s income is derived from two major sources:

e Department of Health funding for public health
services (including Commonwealth contributions)

® Own source revenue.

Metro North’s total revenue was $3.196 billion, which
is an increase of $245.3 million (8.29 per cent) from the
prioryear.

e the activity based funding for hospital services was
71.32 per cent or $2.280 billion.

e Block and other Department of Health funding was
16.87 per cent or $539.2 million.

e Commonwealth grants and other grants
funding was 1.77 percent or $56.4 million for
health services.

® own source revenue was 8.19 per cent
or $261.7 million.

e otherrevenue was 1.86 per cent or $59.5 million.

Total expenses were $3.166 billion, averaging at

$8.7 million a day for providing public health services.
Total expenditure increased by $217.9 million (7.39
per cent from last financial year).

Expenses 201%-20

Assets and liabilities

Metro North’s asset base amounts to $1.958 billion,

with 83.22 per cent or $1.629 billion of this invested in
property, plant and equipment. The remaining balance or
$328.6 million is held in cash, receivables and inventory.

Metro North’s liabilities total $274.8 million and consist of
payables and employee benefits, leaving an equity base
of $1.683 hillion.
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Financial outlook

Metro North has an operating budget of $3.211 billion for
2020-21, which is an increase of $161.8 million (or 5.31%)
from the published 2019-20 operating budget of $3.049
billion.

Future potential impacts from a second wave of COVID-19
in Queensland are difficult to quantify however the health
service is well prepared to meet this challenge if it arises.

A number of capital projects will be completed in 2020-21
including STARS, the Herston Biofabrication Institute and
the Redcliffe multistorey carpark.

Anticipated maintenance

Anticipated maintenance is a common building
maintenance strategy utilised by public and private
sector industries. All Queensland Health entities
comply with the Queensland Government Maintenance
Management Framework which requires the reporting of
anticipated maintenance.

Anticipated maintenance is defined as maintenance that
is necessary to prevent the deterioration of an asset or

its function, but which has not been carried out. Some
anticipated maintenance activities can be postponed
without immediately having a noticeable effect on the
functionality of the building. All anticipated maintenance
items are risk assessed to identify any potential impact on
users and services and are closely managed to ensure all
facilities are safe.

Anticipated maintenance items are identified through
the completion of triennial condition assessments, and
the value and quantum of anticipated maintenance will
fluctuate in accordance with the assessment programs
and completed maintenance works.

As of 3 June 2020, Metro North had reported anticipated
maintenance of $234.6 million. Metro North is currently
completing a condition assessment program for its major
facilities, and the value of anticipated maintenance may
vary as a result.

Metro North has the following strategies in place to
mitigate any risks associated with these items:

e actively engaging with Queensland Health to access
other funding sources such as the Priority Capital
Program funding.

e identify current and forecast issues in the Strategic
Asset Management Plan (SAMP).

e continue to address emergent issues within existing
funding constraints.

e wherever possible address maintenance issues
through funded capital projects.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2020

2020 2020 Budget 2019
Actual Budget Variance Actual
Notes $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Income
User charges and fees Al-1 261,720 270,444 (8,724) 262,066
Funding for the provision of public Al-2 2,818,893 2,719,954 98,939 2,588,399
health services
Grants and other contributions A1-3 56,429 42,845 13,584 43,559
Other revenue Al-4 59,455 36,100 23,355 57,827
Total Revenue 3,196,497 3,069,343 127,154 2,951,851
Gain on disposal/re-measurement 1,009 703 306 395
of assets
Total income 3,197,506 3,070,046 127,460 2,952,246
Expenses
Employee expenses A2-1 2,175,084 2,206,748 31,664 2,085,470
Health service employee expenses A2-1 79,314 - (79,314)
Supplies and services A3-1 736,414 711,683 (24,731) 723,243
Grants and subsidies 1,260 2,233 973 1,128
Interest on lease liabilities 120 - (120)
Depreciation and amortisation B4,B5,B8 146,300 117,595 (28,705) 117,270
Impairment losses 9,912 3,867 (6,045) 8,208
Other expenses A3 17,299 27,920 10,621 12,626
Total expenses 3,165,703 3,070,046 (95,657) 2,947,945
Operating result 31,803 - 31,803 4,301
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to operating result
Increase in asset revaluation surplus B7-1 282,114 - 282,114 34,726
Total other comprehensive income 282,114 - 282,114 34,726
Total comprehensive income 313,917 - 313,917 39,027

The accompanying notes form part of these statements.
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Statement of Financial Position

as at 30 June 2020

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2020 2020 Budget 2019
Actual Budget Variance Actual
Notes $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents B1 132,354 51,681 80,673 117,803
Receivables B2-1 129,812 88,216 41,596 97,778
Inventories B3 21,212 18,311 2,901 18,218
Prepayments 16,305 9,657 6,648 11,534
Total current assets 299,683 167,865 131,818 245,333
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment B5-1 1,629,484 1,322,068 307,416 1,350,059
Right-of-use assets B8-1 5,659 - 5,659
Intangible assets B4 22,670 19,679 2,991 24,980
Prepayments 575 445 130 801
Total non-current assets 1,658,388 1,342,192 316,196 1,375,840
Total assets 1,958,071 1,510,057 448,014 1,621,173
Current liabilities
Payables B6-1 234,193 85,965 (148,228) 134,838
Lease liabilities B8-2 5,711 - 5,711
Accrued employee benefits A2-1 25,807 100,112 74,305 88,653
Contract liabilities 9,059 5,538 (3,521) 15,609
Total current liabilities 274,770 191,615 (71,733) 239,100
Total liabilities 274,770 191,615 (71,733) 239,100
Net assets 1,683,301 1,318,442 376,281 1,382,073
Equity
Contributed equity 1,063,952 1,052,038 11,914 1,076,641
Accumulated surplus/(deficit) 127,515 91,410 36,105 95,712
Asset revaluation surplus B7-1 491,834 174,994 316,840 209,720
Total equity 1,683,301 1,318,442 364,859 1,382,073

The accompanying notes form part of these statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 30 June 2020

Accumulated Asset Contributed Total equity
surplus / (deficit) revaluation equity
surplus
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000

Balance as at 1 July 2018 91,411 174,994 1,093,797 1,360,202
Operating result for the year 4,301 - 4,301
Other comprehensive income
Increase in asset revaluation surplus - 34,726 34,726
Total comprehensive income for the year 4,301 34,726 - 39,027
Transactions with owners:
Equity injections - minor capital funding - 96,840 96,840
Equity withdrawals - depreciation and - (117,271) (117,271)
amortisation
Non-appropriated equity - 3,275 3,275
asset injections
Net transactions with owners - - (17,156) (17,156)
Balance at 30 June 2019 95,712 209,720 1,076,641 1,382,073
Balance as at 1 July 2019 95,712 209,720 1,076,641 1,382,073
Net effect of changes in accounting - - -
policies/prior year adjustments
Operating result for the year 31,803 - - 31,803
Other comprehensive income
Increase in asset revaluation surplus 282,114 - 282,114
Total comprehensive income for the year 31,803 282,114 - 313,917
Transactions with owners:
Equity injections - capital funding 124,873 124,873
Equity withdrawals - depreciation (146,300) (146,300)
and amortisation
Non-appropriated equity 8,738 8,738
asset injections
Net transactions with owners - - (12,689) (12,689)
Balance at 30 June 2020 127,515 491,834 1,063,952 1,683,301

The accompanying notes form part of these statements.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2020

2020 2020 Budget 2019
Actual Budget Variance Actual
Notes $°000 $°000 $’000 $’°000
Cash flows from operating activities
Inflows
User charges and fees 262,400 277,635 (15,235) 274,206
Funding for the provision of public health 2,647,138 2,705,572 (58,434) 2,467,013
services
Grants and other contributions 32,019 19,595 12,424 20,659
Interest received 595 810 (215) 776
Other revenue 47,241 34,700 12,541 47,798
GST received 49,563 39,723 9,840 42,301
Outflows
Employee expenses (2,317,710)  (2,201,030) (116,680)  (2,082,330)
Supplies and services (628,518) (709,544) 81,026 (673,151)
Grants and subsidies (1,958) (2,233) 275 (1,828)
Interest payments on lease liabilities (120) (120) -
Other expenses (15,237) (4,670) (10,567) (11,209)
GST paid (50,392) (39,749) (10,643) (42,131)
Net cash from operating activities CF1 25,021 120,809 (95,788) 42,104
Cash flows from investing activities
Inflows
Sales of property, plant and equipment 1,031 703 328 419
Outflows
Payments for property, plant and equipment (125,631) (37,989) (87,642) (91,310)
Payments for intangible assets (5,271) - (5,271) (6,175)
Net cash (used by) investing activities (129,871) (37,286) (92,585) (97,066)
Cash flows from financing activities
Inflows
Equity transferred 124,873 30,407 94,466 96,840
Outflows
Lease payments (5,472) - (5,472) -
Equity withdrawals - (117,595) 117,595 -
Net cash from/(used by) financing activities 119,401 (87,188) 206,589 96,840
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash 14,551 (3,665) 18,216 41,878
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of 117,803 55,346 62,457 75,925
the financial year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of B1 132,354 51,681 80,673 117,803

the financial year

The accompanying notes form part of these statements.
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Notes to the statement of cash flows
for the year ended 30 June 2020

CF-1 Reconciliation of surplus to net cash from operating activities

2020 2019
$°000 $°000
Surplus / (deficit) for the year 31,803 4,301
Adjustments for:
Non-cash equity withdrawal - depreciation funding (146,300) (117,271)
Depreciation and amortisation expense 146,300 117,270
Impairment loss 9,668 7,171
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 189 695
Assets transferred - non-cash (1,009) (395)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (37,221) (191)
(Increase)/decrease in GST receivables (829) 170
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (2,994) 1,946
(Increase)/decrease in recurrent prepayments (4,545) (2,748)
Increase/(decrease) in payables 99,355 46,143
Increase/(decrease) in accrued salaries and wages (53,525) 1,836
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities and unearned revenue (6,550) 2,303
Increase/(decrease) in other employee benefits (9,321) 1,303
Increase/(decrease) in provisions - (20,429)
Net cash from operating activities 25,021 42,104
CF-2 Non-Cash investing and financing activities
Opening New leases/ Interest  Reduction Cash Cash Closing
balance borrowings Expense in liability Received repayments balance
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Lease liabilities 11,183 120 (5,592) 5,711
Carrying amount 11,183 - 120 - - (5,592) 5,711

at 30 June 2020

The accompanying notes form part of these statements.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

BASIS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT PREPARATION
General information

Metro North Hospital and Health Service (Metro
North) was established on 1 July 2012, as a not-for-
profit statutory body under the Hospital and Health
Boards Act 2011. Metro North is responsible for
providing public sector health services in the area
assigned under the Hospital and Health Boards
Regulation 2012.

Metro North is controlled by the State of Queensland
which is the ultimate parent entity.

The head office and principal place of business of
Metro North is:

Level 14, Block 7
Royal Brisbane and Women’s Hospital
Herston QLD 4029

For information in relation to the health service please
call (07) 3646 8111, email metronorthfeedback@
health.qgld.gov.au or visit Metro North’s website at:
https://www.health.qld.gov.au/metronorth/about/
contact-us.

Statement of compliance

Metro North has prepared these financial statements
in compliance with section 62(1) of the Financial
Accountability Act 2009 (QLD) and section 39 of the
Financial and Performance Management Standard
2019 (QLD).

These financial statements are general purpose
financial statements and have been prepared on an
accrual basis in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards and Interpretations. In addition, the financial
statements comply with Queensland Treasury’s
Financial Reporting Requirements for the year ending 30
June 2020 and other authoritative pronouncements.

With respect to compliance with Australian Accounting
Standards and Interpretations, Metro North has
applied those requirements applicable to a not-for
profit entity. Except where stated, the historical cost
convention is used.

The reporting entity

The financial statements include the value of all
income, expenses, assets, liabilities and equity of
Metro North.

Presentation matters
Currency and rounding

Amounts included in the financial statements are in
Australian dollars and rounded to the nearest $1,000
or, where that amount is $500 or less, to zero, unless
disclosure of the full amount is specifically required.
Some totals may not add due to rounding.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Current/Non-current classification

Assets and liabilities are classified as either ‘current’ or
‘non-current’ in the Statement of financial position and
associated notes.

Assets are classified as ‘current’ where their carrying
amount is expected to be realised within 12 months after
the reporting date. Liabilities are classified as ‘current’
when they are due to be settled within 12 months after
the reporting date, or Metro North does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement to beyond 12
months after the reporting date.

All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-
current.

Implementation of S/4HANA

On 1 August 2019, Metro North implemented S4/HANA,
a new statewide enterprise resource planning (ERP)
system, which replaced FAMMIS ERP. The system is used
to prepare the general purpose financial statements, and
it interfaces with other software that manages revenue,
payroll and certain expenditure streams. Its modules are
used forinventory and accounts payable management.

IT and application level controls were required to be
redesigned and new workflows implemented. Extensive
reconciliations were completed on implementation to
ensure the accuracy of the data migrated

Authorisation of financial statements for issue

The financial statements are authorised forissue by
the Chair of Metro North Hospital and Health Board
and the Health Service Chief Executive and the Chief
Finance and Corporate Officer at the date of signing the
Management Certificate.

SECTION A NOTES ABOUT
OUR FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

A1 REVENUE
2020 2019
$°000 $’000
Al-1: User charges and fees
Revenue from contracts
with customers
Hospital fees 131,008 139,171
Sales of goods and services 25,029 24,944
Pharmaceutical benefit 105,683 97,951
scheme reimbursements
Total 261,720 262,066
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A1-1 User charges and fees (continued)

Accounting policy - User charges and fees

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when Metro North transfers control over a good or service
to the customer or third-party beneficiary. Revenue from
hospital fees and the sales of services is comprised

of private healthcare services, research and training
services respectively. Services are provided over time,
with customers simultaneously receiving and consuming
the benefits provided during that period. Metro North
does not invoice for services rendered until the end

of the service delivery period and recognises revenue
progressively as the services are provided each month
and a contract asset representing its right to consideration
for services delivered but not yet billed.

Revenue from sales of goods and pharmaceutical benefit
scheme comprises the sale of retail and pharmacy
products and is recognised on transfer of the goods to the
customer, which is the sole performance obligation.

The adoption of AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers in 2019-20 did not change the timing of
revenue recognition for these revenue streams.

A1-2: Funding for the provision
of public health services

2020 2019
$°000 $°000
Activity based funding 2,279,718 2,091,656
Block funding 197,240 181,620
Depreciation funding 146,300 117,271
Other funding 195,635 197,852

Total 2,818,893 2,588,399

Accounting policy - Funding for the
provision of public health services

Funding is provided predominantly from the Department
of Health for specific public health services purchased by
the Department in accordance with a service agreement.
The Australian Government pays its share of National
Health funding directly to the Department of Health, for on
forwarding to the Hospital and Health Service. The service
agreement is reviewed periodically and updated for
changes in activities and prices of services delivered by
Metro North. Cash funding from the Department of Health
is received fortnightly for State payments and monthly for
Commonwealth payments and is recognised as revenue
as the performance obligations under the service level
agreement are discharged. Commonwealth funding to
Metro North in 2020 was $1B (2019, $982M).

At the end of the financial year, an agreed technical
adjustment between the Department of Health and Metro
North may be required for the level of services performed
above or below the agreed levels, which may result in a
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receivable or unearned revenue. This technical adjustment
process is undertaken annually according to the
provisions of the service level agreement and ensures that
the revenue recognised in each financial year correctly
reflects Metro North’s delivery of health services. There
has been no change to the amount or timing of revenue
recognition with the adoption of AASB 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers and AASB 1058 Income of Not-
for-Profit Entities.

The service agreement between the Department of

Health and Metro North dictates that depreciation and
amortisation charges that are incurred by Metro North are
funded by the Department of Health via non-cash revenue.
This transaction is shown in the Statement of changes in
equity as an equity withdrawal, $146.3M in 2020 (2019:
$117.3M).

In March 2020 the Commonwealth and States entered
into a National Partnership on COVID-19 Response. Under
this agreement the parties agreed to work togetherin
response to the COVID-19 pandemic and to jointly fund
additional health expenditure incurred to effectively
manage the COVID-19 outbreak. Additional revenue of
$42.9M is included in “Other funding” above in relation to
this agreement.

A1-3: Grants and other contributions

2020 2019
$°000 $°000
Revenue from contracts
with customers
Other specific purpose 221
recurrent grants
Other specific purpose 1,800
capital grants
Other grants 1,101
Grants and other 3,122
contributions
Other grants and
contributions
Grants and other 7,375 7,464
contributions
Other specific purpose 10,763 10,438
recurrent grants
Donations 8,066 594
Other grants 2,693 2,157
Other grants and other 28,897 20,653
contributions
Services received 24,410 22,906
below fair value
Total 56,429 43,559




A1-3 Grants and other contributions (continued)

Accounting policy - Grants and other contributions

Grants, contributions and donations are non-exchange
transactions where Metro North does not directly give
approximately equal value to the grantor. Where the
agreement is enforceable and contains sufficiently specific
performance obligations for Metro North to transfer goods
or services to a third-party on the grantor’s behalf, the
transaction is accounted for under AASB 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers. In this case, revenue is initially
deferred (as a contract liability) and recognised as or
when the performance obligations are satisfied.

Otherwise, the grant or contribution is accounted for
under AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities,
whereby revenue is recognised upon receipt of the

grant funding, except for special purpose capital grants
received to construct or acquire non-financial assets to
be controlled by Metro North. Special purpose capital
grants are recognised as contract liability when received,
and subsequently recognised progressively as revenue
as Metro North satisfies its obligations under the grant
through construction or acquisition of the asset.

Grants and other contributions recognised as revenue
from contracts with customers

Metro North receives specific purpose recurrent grants

for the provision of Transition Care Services, Organ and
Tissue Donation and Transplantation Services under
Commonwealth funding programs. It also receives
Commonwealth funding under grants and other contributions
for the provision of residential aged care services under
Commonwealth nursing home benefit funding. These
agreements require Metro North to provide an agreed level
of care to a specified number of eligible patients with funding
determined based on services provided.

Other specific purpose capital grants

Metro North received a specific purpose capital grant of
$1.8M from the Sony Foundation for the construction of
a dedicated Adolescent and Youth Cancer Centre at the
Royal Brisbane and Women’s Hospital (RBWH), which has
now been completed.

Donations

This revenue stream consists of donations, gifts and
bequests of cash or non-current assets for the purposes
of benefiting the patient experience, staff education or
research. Use of these funds is restricted and any unspent
money is held in trust until it is expended for the above
purposes. Refer to note D3 for details.

In 2019-20, Metro North received a material donation
of $7.6M from the RBWH Foundation in relation to the
transfer of the financial management of clinical trial
activity. The funds must be used to support clinical trial
research and education.

Other grants

Metro North receives a number of grants from
government, industry and community entities.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These grants include contributions from the Motor
Accident Insurance Commission (MAIC) to support
research at the jointly funded Trauma Institute and the
Commonwealth Department of Health Radiation Oncology
Health Program Grants (ROHPG) program.

Accounting policy - Services received below fair value

Contributions of services are recognised only if the
services would have been purchased if they had not been
donated and their fair value can be measured reliably.
Where this is the case, an equal amount is recognised as
revenue and expense.

During 2019-20, Metro North received services below

fair value from the Department of Health in the form of
payroll, accounts payable and banking services. These
services are essential to Metro North’s operations and
would have been procured if they were not received for
free. The fair value of these services amounting to $24.4M
in 2020 (2019: $22.9M) is recognised in Grants and other
contributions. An equal amount to services received below
fair value revenue is recognised as other expenses. Refer
to note A3-1 for the corresponding disclosure.

Metro North also receives services from volunteers who
greet, direct and escort hospital patients and visitors,
provide basic administrative support and assistance
with role playing for some clinical skills development
programs. While greatly appreciated, these donated
services are not recognised because their fair value has
been assessed as immaterial and they would not have
been purchased if they had not been donated.

A1-4: Other revenue

2020 2019

$°000  $°000
Health service employee 21,415 18,223
expense recoveries
Rental Income 3,589 3,950
Other recoveries 21,378 24,278
Other revenue 12,478 10,600
Total 59,455 57,827

Accounting policy — Health service employee expense
recoveries and Other recoveries

Recovery income is received as reimbursement of goods,
services or staff provided by Metro North to other hospital
and health services and government agencies. Revenue

is recognised on a gross basis at cost (i.e. no margin
attached) when or as the good or service is transferred to
the other entity under AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers. There has been no change to the timing of
revenue recognition with the adoption of AASB 15.
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A2 EMPLOYEE EXPENSES

A2-1: Employee expenses

2020 2019
$°000 $'000
Employee benefits
Wages and salaries* 1,706,145 1,644,645
Employer superannuation 184,597 171,051
contributions
Annual leave levy 210,658 202,354
Long service leave levy 41,815 34,788
Termination benefits 870 1,291
Employee related expenses
Workers compensation 16,925 16,571
premium
Other employee related 14,074 14,770
expenses
Total 2,175,084 2,085,470
2020 No. 2019 No.
Full-Time Equivalent 857 16,184
Employees
Full-Time Equivalent Health 15,961 -
Service Contract Labour
Total 16,818 16,184

* Wages and salaries include $10.7M of $1,250 one-off, pro-
rata payments for 8,616 full-time equivalent employees
(announced in September 2019).

Accounting policy - Employee benefits

Employer superannuation contributions, annual leave
levies and long service leave levies are regarded as
employee benefits.

Workers’ compensation insurance is a consequence of
employing employees and is recognised separately as
employee related expenses. Wages and salaries due but
unpaid at reporting date are recognised in the Statement of
financial position at current salary rates.

As Metro North expects such liabilities to be wholly settled
within 12 months of reporting date, the liabilities are
recognised at undiscounted amounts.

Under the Queensland Government’s Annual Leave Central
Scheme and Long Service Leave Scheme, a levy is made on
Metro North to cover the cost of employees’ annual leave
(including leave loading and on-costs) and long service
leave. The levies are expensed in the period in which

they are payable. Amounts paid to employees for annual
leave are claimed from the scheme quarterly in arrears.
Non-vesting employee benefits, such as sick leave, are
recognised as an expense when taken.
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Employer superannuation contributions are paid to
Queensland Government’s QSuper fund, or an alternative
employee-nominated choice of superannuation fund, for
all employees and include superannuation contributions
to self-managed superannuation funds. QSuper is

the default superannuation scheme for Queensland
Government employees. The QSuper scheme has defined
contribution and defined benefit categories, where the
rates for the latter are determined by the Treasurer on the
advice of the State Actuary. Contributions are expensed
in the period in which they are paid, or payable and
Metro North’s obligation is limited to the value of those
contributions paid.

The provisions for annual leave and long service leave and
the liability for superannuation obligations are reported
on a whole-of government basis pursuant to AASB 1049
Whole of Government and General Government Sector
Financial Reporting.

Health service contract labour

Effective 15 June 2020, a legislative change to the employer
arrangements within Queensland Health was implemented.
From this date, all non executive employees of Metro North
(i.e. other than senior executives, senior medical officers
and visiting medical officers) became the employees of

the Director-General, Queensland Health. Direct labour
postings, in addition to related assets and liabilities
including accrued employee benefits, for these employees
will be classified from employee expense to contract
labour expense. These changes were a result of the
Government’s implementation of recommendations from
the “Advice on Queensland Health’s governance framework
report”, issued in June 2019 and introduce consistency of
employment arrangements for non-executive staff across
all Queensland Health entities.

The amount reclassified for the period 15 June - 30 June
2020 was $79.3M which is disclosed on the face of the
Statement of comprehensive income.

A2-2: Key Management Personnel Disclosures

Metro North’s responsible Minister is identified as part of
its key management personnel. That Minister is the Deputy
Premier and Minister for Health and Minister for Ambulance
Services, Honourable Dr. Steven Miles MP.

The following details for non-Ministerial key management
personnel reflect those Metro North positions that had
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling activities during the current financial year:



A2-2: Key management personnel disclosures (continued)

Position

Name

Contract classification /
appointment authority

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Initial Resignation/
appointment Cessation date
date

Non-executive Board Chair - Emeritus Professor Chairperson — Hospital 18/5/2016  17/05/2020
Provide strategic leadership, Robert Stable and Health Boards Act
guidance and effective oversight ~ AM MBBS, DUniv, MHP, 2011 Section 25 (1) (@)
of management, operations and FRACGP, FAICD, FCHSM Tenure: 18/05/2016 to
financial performance. (Hon) 17/05/2020
Dr Kim Forrester Acting/Relieving duties 07/02/2020 19/03/2020
RN, BA, LLB, LLM
(Advanced), PhD, MAICD,
Barrister at Law, Honorary
Adjunct Associate
Professor, Faculty of
Health Sciences and
Medicine Bond University
Jim McGowan AM Chairperson — Hospital 18/05/2020
B Econ. Dip Ed and Health Boards Act
2011 Section 25 (1) (@)
Tenure: 18/05/2020 to
31/03/2024
Non-executive Deputy Dr Kim Forrester Board Member — Hospital 18/05/2013
Board Chair — Provide RN, BA, LLB, LLM and Health Boards Act
strategic leadership, guidance (Advanced), PhD, MAICD, 2011 Section 23 (1)
and effective oversight of Barrister at Law, Honorary  Tenure: 18/05/2014 to
management, operations and Adjunct Associate 17/05/2018
financial performance. Professor, Faculty of Tenure: 18/05/2018 to
Health Science and 17/05/2021
Medicine Bond University
Non-executive Board Member Ms Bonny Barry Board Member - Hospital 18/05/2016
- Provide strategic leadership, RN BNsg and Health Boards Act
guidance and effective oversight 2011 Section 23 (1)
of management, operations and Tenure: 18/05/2017 to
financial performance. 17/05/2020
Tenure: 18/05/2020 to
31/03/2024
Professor Mary-Louise Board Member — Hospital 18/05/2016
Fleming and Health Boards Act
BEd (QUT), MA (Ohio), 2011 Section 23 (1)
PhD (Qld), MAICD Tenure: 18/05/2017 to
17/05/2020
Tenure: 18/05/2020 to
31/03/2024
Mr Geoff Hardy Board Member — Hospital 18/05/2016
B Bus (Econ), Dip HA, and Health Boards Act
Grad Dip Commerce (Mkt), 2011 Section 23 (1)
MAICD, AFCHSM Tenure: 18/05/2017 to
17/05/2020
Tenure: 18/05/2020 to
31/03/2024
Mr Adrian Carson Board Member — Hospital 18/05/2017

GCertHServMgt

and Health Boards Act
2011 Section 23 (1)
Tenure: 18/05/2017 to
17/05/2020

Tenure: 18/05/2020 to
31/03/2024
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A2-2: Key management personnel disclosures (continued)

Non-executive Board Member
(continued)

Dr Paula Conroy Board Member — Hospital 18/05/2018
BSc MBBS DCH FRACGP and Health Boards Act
GAICD 2011 Section 23 (1)
Tenure: 18/05/2018 to
17/05/2019
Tenure: 18/05/2019 to
31/03/2022
Mr Bernard Curran Board Member — Hospital 18/05/2018
BBus (QUT), FCA, and Health Boards Act
FAICD, FTIA 2011 Section 23 (1)
Tenure: 18/05/2018 to
17/05/2019
Tenure: 18/05/2019 to
31/03/2022
Associate Professor Kim Board Member — Hospital 18/05/2018
Johnston and Health Boards Act
PhD, MBus, 2011 Section 23 (1)
GradCertAcadPrac (QUT),  Tenure: 18/05/2018 to
BNurs (NTU), GCertNurs 17/05/2019
(RPAH), FHEA, MAICD Tenure: 18/05/2019 to
17/05/2021
18/05/2018
Dr Robert Franz Board Member — Hospital 18/05/2019
MBBS, FRACS, GCM and Health Boards Act
2011 Section 23 (1)
Tenure: 18/05/2019 to
17/05/2021
Mr Neil Roberts Board Member — Hospital 18/05/2019

MBA, BBus,
GradCertDisRes, GAICD

and Health Boards Act
2011 Section 23 (1)
Tenure: 18/05/2019 to
31/03/2022
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Position Name Contract classification / Initial Resignation/
appointment authority = appointment  Cessation
date date |
Chief Executive - Responsible for the Mr Shaun Drummond 10524/S70 01, 29/09/2017 30/04/2019
strategic direction and the efficient, Hospital and Health
effective and economic administration Boards Act 2011 20/01/2020
of the Health Service. Tenure: 29/09/2017
t0 28/09/2022
Adjunct Professor Acting/Relieving in 17/04/2019 28/01/2020
Jackie Hanson BNSc higher duties
26/02/2020 22/03/2020
Chief Operating Officer — Responsible  Adjunct Professor HES4, Hospital and 30/04/2018 29/06/2019
for providing operational leadership, Jackie Hanson Health Boards Act 2011
direction and day to day management, ~ BNSc Tenure: 30/04/2018to ~ 29/01/2020  25/02/2020
including infrastructure, of Metro 25/04/2021
North Hospital and Health Service 23/03/2020
to optimise quality health care and
business outcomes.
Ms Jodie Ashworth Acting/Relieving in 01/07/2019 22/11/2019
GAICD, DipAppNSc, higher duties
Cert (Midwifery), Cert
CritCare), GradDipHSM,
GradDipHR
Chief Finance and Corporate Officer Ms Melissa MacCabe HES3, Hospital and 13/08/2018 06/09/2019
— Responsible for development CA, BBus (Accy/Legal) Health Boards Act 2011
and execution of strategy and full Tenure: 13/08/2018 to 23/09/2019
accountability with respect to financial 12/08/2021
stewardship, management of the asset
portfolio, legal, information technology,
human resources, commercial matters
and procurement.
Executive Director, Clinical Services Dr Elizabeth Whiting MMOI4, Medical 01/09/2014
— Responsible for monitoring and BA, MB BCH BAO, Officers’ (Queensland
strategically directing the budgetary FRACP, FRANZSGM Health) Certified
and activity performance of Metro North Agreement (No.4) 2015
Hospital and Health Service’s clinical Tenure: 01/09/2014
streams and assist the Health Service 30/09/2020
Chief Executive and other Executive
Directors in effective management of
not only the Clinical Streams but also
Metro North Hospital and Health Service
as an entity.
Executive Director, Safety and Ms. Noelle Cridland HES3, Hospital and 01/02/2018 27/10/2019
Quality - Provide strategic leadership, BN, MN, MAICD Health Boards Act 2011
direction and day to day management Tenure: 01/02/2018 to
of Metro North Hospital and Health 27/10/2019
Service’s governance, quality and
risk functions to optimise quality
health care, statutory and policy
compliance and continuously improving
business outcomes.
Mr Mark Butterworth Acting/Relieving in 28/10/2019

BAppSc, GradDipBA

higher duties
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A2-2: Key management personnel disclosures (continued)

Remuneration policy
Minister remuneration

Metro North does not incur any expense in relation to the
Minister. The majority of Ministerial entitlements are paid
by the Legislative Assembly, with remaining entitlements
being provided by Ministerial Services Branch within the
Department of Premier and Cabinet. As all Ministers are
reported as key management personnel of the Queensland
Government, aggregate remuneration expenses for all
Ministers are disclosed in the Queensland Whole of
Government Consolidated Financial Statements from 2017-
18 onwards, which are published as part of the Report on
State Finances.

Board

The remuneration of members of the Board is approved by
Governor-in-Council as part of the terms of appointment.
Each member is entitled to receive a fee, with the exception
of appointed public service employees unless otherwise
approved by the Queensland Government. Members may
also be eligible for superannuation payments.

Executive management

Section 74(1) of the Hospital and Health Boards Act 2011
provides that each person appointed as a Health Executive
must enter into a contract of employment. The Health
Service Chief Executive must enter into the contract of
employment with the Chair of the Board for the Hospital
and Health Service and a Health Executive employed by a
Hospital and Health Service must enter into a contract of
employment with the Health Service Chief Executive. The
contract of employment must state the term of employment
(no longer than 5 years per contract), the person’s functions
and any performance criteria as well as the person’s
classification level and remuneration entitlements.
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Remuneration packages for key executive management
personnel comprise of the following components:

e Short-term employee benefits which include:
Monetary benefits — consisting of base salary,
allowances and leave entitlements paid and provided
for the entire year or for that part of the year during
which the employee occupied the specified position.
Amounts disclosed equal the amount expensed in the
Statement of comprehensive income. Non-monetary
benefits — consisting of provision of vehicle and
expense payments together with fringe benefits tax
applicable to the benefit.

e |ong-term employee benefits include long service
leave accrued.

e Post-employment benefits include superannuation
contributions.

e Redundancy payments are not provided for within
individual contracts of employment. Contracts
of employment provide only for notice periods or
payment in lieu on termination, regardless of the
reason for termination.

e There were no performance bonuses paid in the
2019-20 financial year (2019: $nil).
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A2-2: Key management personnel disclosures (continued)

Board Remuneration

Emeritus Professor Robert Stable AM 82 8 90
Dr Kim Forrester 59 6 65
Mr Jim McGowan AM 10 1 11
Ms Bonny Barry 50 5 55
Professor Mary-Louise Fleming 50 5 55
Mr Geoff Hardy 54 5 59
Mr Adrian Carson 50 5 55
Dr Paula Conroy 50 5 55
Mr Bernard Curran 51 5 56
Associate Professor Kim Johnston 50 5 55
Mr Neil Roberts 50 5 55
Total Remuneration 556 - 55 611

Metro North has reimbursed board members a total of $385.95 for out-of-pocket expenses incurred whilst travelling on
approved board business including attendance at board meetings.

Emeritus Professor Robert Stable AM 96 9 105
Dr Kim Forrester 60 6 66
Ms Bonny Barry 52 5 57
Mr Adrian Carson 52 5 57
Professor Mary-Louise Fleming 52 5 57
Mr Geoff Hardy 56 5 62
Associate Professor Cliff Pollard AM 46 4 51
Dr Kim Johnston 52 5 57
Dr Paula Conroy 52 5 57
Mr Bernard Curran 53 5 58
Mr Neil Roberts 7 1 7

Total Remuneration 578 - 55 633

Metro North has reimbursed board members a total of $8,474.42 for out-of-pocket expenses incurred whilst travelling on
approved board business including attendance at board meetings.
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A2-2: Key management personnel disclosures (continued)

Other key management personnel remuneration

12019-20
Chief Executive 244 - 5 21 - 270

Chief Executive 264 - 5 27 - 296
(01/07/2019

to 28/01/2020,

26/02/2020 to

22/03/2020)

Chief Operating Officer 76 - 2 9 - 87
(23/11/2019 to

30/06/2020)

Executive Director, 117 - 2 11 - 130
Operations

(01/07/2019 to

22/11/2019)

Chief Finance and 228 - 5 23 - 256
Corporate Officer

Executive Director, 589 1 13 45 - 648
Clinical Services

Executive Director, 71 - 2 7 - 80
Safety and Quality

(01/07/2019 to

25/10/2019)

Executive Director, 229 - 5 24 - 258
Safety and Quality

(28/10/2019 to

30/06/2020)

Total 1,818 1 39 167 - 2,025
2018-19

Chief Executive (to 393 - 8 33 - 433
30/04/2019)

Chief Executive (from 87 - 2 7 - 96
01/05/2019)

Executive Director, 236 - 4 29 - 269
Operations (to
30/04/2019)

Chief Finance Officer (to 46 - 1 4 80 130
25/08/2018)

Chief Finance Officer 204 - 4 21 - 228
(from 13/08/2018)

Executive Director, 589 1 12 43 - 645
Clinical Services

Executive Director, 234 - 5 24 - 263
Safety and Quality

Total 1,788 1 35 162 80 2,066
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A3: OTHER EXPENSES

A3-1: Supplies and services

2020 2019

$°000 $°000
Clinical supplies and services 188,601 187,000
Drugs 143,596 136,244
Pathology, blood and parts 98,011 104,561
Catering and domestic supplies 52,459 45,466
Repairs and maintenance 48,127 40,993
Other 32,217 45,061
Communications 29,509 24,788
Computer services 27,434 15,592
Insurance 25,115 23,646
Services received below fair value 24,410 22,906
Electricity and other energy 17,319 18,855
Consultants and contractors - non-clinical 12,224 14,498
Consultants and contractors - clinical 10,338 4,684
Rental expenses 7,332 11,914
Patient travel 5,237 11,355
Building services 4,801 3,004
Other travel 3,640 3,728
Minor works including plant and equipment 3,007 4,391
Water 1,750 3,579
Motor vehicles 976 851
Lease expenses 311 127
Total 736,414 723,243

Accounting policy — Goods and services received below fair value

During 2019-20 Metro North received services below fair value from the Department of Health in the form of payroll,
accounts payable and banking services. Under AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities, contributions of goods and
services are recognised only if the goods or services would have been purchased if they had not been donated and their
fair value can be measured reliably.

Metro North satisfied both requirements and therefore the fair value of the services received is recognised as revenue with
a corresponding expense in the financial statements.

Refer to note A1-3 for disclosure of the corresponding income recognised for services received below fair value.

Accounting policy — Insurance

Metro North is covered by the Department of Health’s insurance policy with the Queensland Government Insurance Fund
(QGIF) and pays a fee to the Department of Health as a fee for service arrangement.

QGIF covers property and general losses above a $10,000 threshold and health litigation payments above a $20,000
threshold and associated legal fees. Premiums are calculated by QGIF on a risk assessment basis.

Lease expenses

Lease expenses include lease rentals for short-term leases, leases of low value assets and variable lease payments. Refer
to Note B8 for breakdown of lease expenses and other lease disclosures
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A3-2: Other Expenses (continued)
Audit expenses

Total audit fees paid or payable to the Queensland
Audit Office relating to the 2019-20 financial year are
$361,500 (2019: $320,000). There are no non-audit
services included in this amount.

Special payments

Special payments include ex-gratia expenditure

and other expenditure that Metro North is not
contractually or legally obligated to make to other
parties. In compliance with the Financial and
Performance Management Standard 2019, Metro
North maintains a register setting out the details of
all special payments greater than $5,000. The total
of all special payments (including those of $5,000 or
less) is within the category of Other Expenses in the
financial statements. In 2019-20, ex-gratia payments
of $152,576 (2019: $91,595) were made, consisting
of five reportable payments totalling $121,960 (2019:
$50,968) and a number of smaller non-reportable
payments. Five reportable payments ranging from
$14,000 to $37,500 relate to patient medical claims
and financial assistance.
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SECTION B NOTES ABOUT OUR
FINANCIAL POSITION

B1 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2020 2019
$'000 $'000
Cash at bank and on 98,839 93,346
hand
Cash on deposit 33,515 24,457
Total 132,354 117,803

Cash on deposit represents cash contributions from
external entities and other benefactors in the form of
gifts, bequests, donations and legacies for specific
purposes. These funds are deposited with Queensland
Treasury Corporation and set aside for specific purposes
underlying the contribution. Cash on deposit is at call and
is subject to floating interest rates. The annual effective
interest rate is 0.86% (2019: 2.38%)

Accounting policy - Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the Statement of financial position and
the Statement of cash flows, cash assets include all cash
and cheques receipted but not yet banked at reporting
date as well as deposits at call with financial institutions.
Metro North’s bank account is grouped within the whole-
of-government set-off arrangement with the Queensland
Treasury Corporation and, as a result, does not earn
interest on surplus funds noris it charged interest or fees
for accessing its approved cash overdraft facility. Interest
earned on the aggregate set-off arrangement balance
accrues to the consolidated fund.
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B2 RECEIVABLES

B2-1: Receivables

2020 2019

$'000 $'000
Trade receivables (net of allowance for impairment) 72,582 66,832
Other receivables 57,230 30,946
Total 129,812 97,778
Movements in the allowance for impairment loss
Balance at beginning of the year 10,347 9,387
Amounts written off during the year (9,668) 7,171)
Increase/(decrease) in allowance recognised in operating result 9,912 8,131
Total 10,591 10,347

B2-2: Impairment of receivables

At 30 June, the ageing of both impaired trade receivables and trade receivables past due but not impaired was as follows:

Past due but Impaired
not Impaired
$'000 $'000

2020
Trade Receivables
Less than 30 days 4,570 333
30 to 60 days 5,417 228
60 to 90 days 4,782 220
Greater than 90 days 27,311 9,809
Total overdue 42,081 10,591
2019
Trade Receivables
Less than 30 days 6,467 483
30 to 60 days 6,013 441
60 to 90 days 4,760 300
Greater than 90 days 16,115 9,122
Total overdue 33,355 10,346

Accounting policy — Receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at the amount invoiced to customers. Trade and other receivables
reflect the amount anticipated to be collected. The collectability of these balances is assessed on an ongoing basis.
When there is evidence that an amount will not be collected it is provided for and then written off. If receivables are
subsequently recovered the amounts are credited against other expenses in the Statement of comprehensive income
when collected.
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B2-2 Impairment of receivables / Accounting
policy — receivables (continued)

Trade receivables are due for settlement within 30 days.
They are presented as current assets unless collection

is not expected for more than twelve months after the
reporting date. Due to the short-term nature of current
receivables, their carrying amount is assumed to
approximate the amount invoiced. All credit and recovery
risk associated with trade receivables has been provided
for in the Statement of financial position.

Key judgements and estimates — Recoverability of trade
receivables: Judgement is required in determining the level
of provisioning for customer debts.

The loss allowance for trade and other debtors reflects
lifetime expected credit losses and incorporates reasonable
and supportable forward-looking information. Economic
changes impacting Metro North’s debtors, and relevant
industry data form part of the impairment assessment.
Metro North uses a provision matrix to measure the
expected credit losses on trade and other debtors. Loss
rates are calculated separately for groupings of customers
with similar revenue profiles and historical loss patterns
experienced on past revenue transactions. Consideration

is given to reasonable and supportable forward-looking
information and related business processes that may
impact the future recovery of those receivables and may
result in an adjustment to the historical loss rates for the
affected customer groupings if the impact is expected to be
material.

Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability
that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation, default or delinquency in payments (more
than 90 days overdue or more than 120 days in the case
where the account is with a health fund), past experience,
and management judgement are considered indicators that
the trade receivable is impaired.

Where there is no reasonable expectation of recovering an
amount owed by a debtor, the debt is written-off by directly
reducing the receivable against the loss allowance. If the
amount of debt written off exceeds the loss allowance, the
excess is recognised as an impairment loss. The amount of
impairment losses recognised for receivables is disclosed
above.

Disclosure — Receivables

At 30 June 2020, $28.5.M of non-contract receivables were
included in the receivables balance.
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B3 INVENTORIES

2020 2019
$°000 $'000
Medical supplies and 21,082 17,766
equipment
Other 130 452
Total 21,212 18,218

Accounting policy - Inventories

Inventories consist mainly of clinical supplies and
pharmaceuticals held for distribution to the hospital

and health service facilities. Inventories are measured
at weighted average cost, adjusted for obsolescence.
Inventories do not include supplies held for ready for use
in the wards throughout the hospital and health service
facilities unless the value of the individual holding is
considered to be material.



B4 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B4-1: Intangible Assets — Balances and reconciliations of carrying amount

Software Software Software work in Total
purchased generated progress
2020 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Cost 14,206 16,883 5,814 36,903
Less: Accumulated amortisation (7,554) (6,679) (14,233)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2020 6,652 10,204 5,814 22,670
Represented by movement in carrying
amount:
Carrying amount at 1 July 2019 4,678 20,302 24,980
Additions 74 5,197 5,271
Transfers between classes# 3,672 12,395 (15,925) 142
Write-off of software work in progress (3,760) (3,760)
Amortisation expense 1,772) (2,191) (3,963)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2020 6,652 10,204 5,814 22,670
Software Software Software work in Total
purchased generated progress
2019 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Cost 10,460 4,488 20,302 35,250
Less: Accumulated amortisation (5,782) (4,488) (10,270)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2019 4,678 20,302 24,980
Represented by movement in carrying
amount:
Carrying amount at 1 July 2018 4,195 16,944 21,139
Additions 130 6,045 6,175
Transfers between classes# 2,518 (2,594) (76)
Write-off of software work in progress 93) 93
Amortisation expense (2,165) (2,165)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2019 4,678 20,302 24,980

#Transfers represent reclassification to software work in progress from property, plant and equipment during the year.

B4-2: Accounting policies — Recognition
Capitalisation and Recognition Thresholds

Intangible assets are only recognised if they satisfy
recognition criteria in accordance with AASB 138 Intangible
Assets. Intangible assets are recorded at cost, which is
consideration plus costs incidental to the acquisition, less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

An intangible asset is recognised only if its cost is equal
to or greater than $100,000. Internally generated software
costincludes all direct costs associated with development
of that software. All other costs are expensed as incurred.

B4-3: Accounting policies — Amortisation

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful life with a residual value of zero. The

estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
periodically, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis. The useful life of Metro
North’s software is 5 years.

Software is amortised from the time of acquisition or, in
respect of internally generated software, from the time the
asset is completed and held ready for use.

B4-4: Accounting policies — Impairment

Intangible assets are assessed for indicators of impairment on
an annual basis.

The impairment review conducted in 2019-20 resulted in
some software work in progress assets being written off. At
the end of 2019-20 no other intangible assets or intangible
work in progress assets were considered to be impaired
(2019: $0.09M).
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B5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
B5-1: Property, plant and equipment - Balances and reconciliations of carrying amount

2020 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Gross 374,215 2,506,922 1,091 416,374 85,247 3,383,849
Less: Accumulated - (1,516,963) (610) (236,792) - (1,754,365)
depreciation

Carrying amount 374,215 989,959 481 179,582 85,247 1,629,484
at 30 June 2020

Represented by

movements in
carrying amount:

Carrying amount 373,916 718,263 510 164,058 93,312 1,350,059
at1July 2019
Transfers in from 500 8,152 - 194 - 8,846

other Queensland
Government entities

Acquisitions - 761 - 38,956 85,914 125,631
Disposals - - - (211) - (211)
Transfers between - 77,474 - 16,363 (93,979) (142)
classes#

Net revaluation (201) 282,315 - - - 282,114
increments

Depreciation expense - (97,006) 29 (39,778) - (136,813)
Carrying amount 374,215 989,959 481 179,582 85,247 1,629,484
at 30 June 2020

*Level 2 land assets comprise land with an active market. Level 2 building assets are buildings with an active market.
**Level 3 building assets are special purpose built and have no observable inputs.

***Plant and equipment is held at cost, except for Heritage and Cultural assets which are held at fair value are valued at
$0.89M (2019: $0.89M).

# Transfers represent a reclassification to software work in progress from property, plant and equipment and
capitalisation of commissioned assets during the year.
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B5 Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

B5-1: Property, plant and equipment - Balances and reconciliations of carrying amount

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Land Buildings Buildings Plantand Capital works Total
Level 2* Level 3** Level 2** equipment *** in progress

2019 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Gross 373,916 2,361,673 1,091 391,429 93,312 3,221,421
Less: Accumulated (1,643,410) (581) (227,371) (1,871,362)
depreciation
Carrying amount 373,916 718,263 510 164,058 93,312 1,350,059
at 30 June 2019
Represented by
movements in
carrying amount:
Carrying amount 366,635 743,126 460 164,411 61,092 1,335,724
at 1July 2018
Transfers in from 3,661 4,570 8,231
other Queensland
Government entities
Acquisitions 3,521 30,757 57,032 91,310
Donated assets 342 - 342
Disposals (626) - (626)
Transfers out to (4,618) - (4,618)
other Queensland
Government entities
Transfers between 19,086 5,801 (24,812) 75
classes#
Net revaluation 7,281 27,370 75 - - 34,726
increments
Depreciation expense (78,501) (25) (36,579) - (115,105)
Carrying amount 373,916 718,263 510 164,058 93,312 1,350,059

at 30 June 2019

*Level 2 land assets comprise land with an active market. Level 2 building assets are buildings with an active market.

**Level 3 building assets are special purpose built and have no observable inputs.

***Plant and equipment is held at cost, except for Heritage and Cultural assets which are held at fair value are valued at

$0.89M (2019: $0.89M).

# Transfers represent a reclassification to software work in progress from property, plant and equipment and
capitalisation of commissioned assets during the year.
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B5 Property plant and equipment (continued)

B5-2: Accounting Policies — Recognition
Capitalisation and Recognition Thresholds

Items of property, plant and equipment with a cost or other
value equal to or in excess of the following thresholds and
with a useful life of more than one year are recognised for
financial reporting purposes in the year of acquisition.

Class Threshold
Land $1
Buildings and Land Improvements* $10,000
Plant and Equipment $5,000

* Land improvements undertaken by Metro North Hospital
and Health Service are included with buildings.

Items with a lesser value are expensed in the year
of acquisition.

Subsequent expenditure is only capitalised when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with
the expenditure will flow to Metro North. Ongoing repairs
and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

Any expenditure that increases the originally assessed
capacity or service potential of an asset is capitalised
and the new depreciable amount is depreciated over the
remaining useful life of the asset.

Acquisition

Plant and equipment are initially recorded at consideration
plus any other cost directly incurred in bringing the

asset ready to use. Items or components that form an
integral part of an asset are recognised as a single
(functional) asset.

Where assets are received free of charge from another
Queensland Government entity, the acquisition cost is
recognised as the gross carrying amount in the books of
the transferorimmediately prior to the transfer together
with any accumulated depreciation.

Assets acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration,
other than from an involuntary transfer from another
Queensland Government entity, are recognised at their fair
value at date of acquisition in accordance with AASB 116
Property, Plant and Equipment.

B5-3: Accounting Policies - Measurement
Measurement at Historical Cost

Plant and equipment is measured at cost net of
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses in accordance with Queensland Treasury’s Non-
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Current Asset Policies for the Queensland Public Sector.
Measurement of Fair Value

Land and buildings are measured at fair value in accordance
with AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment, AASB 13 Fair
Value Measurement and Queensland Treasury’s Non-Current
Asset Policies for the Queensland Public Sector.

The fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an

exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly derived
from observable inputs or estimated using another valuation
technique.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefit by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use. The current use of the asset is
deemed to be the highest and best use.

Fair Value Inputs

Fair values reported by Metro North are based on valuation
techniques that maximise the use of available and relevant
observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs.

Observable inputs are relevant publicly available data, for
example, published sales data for land.

Unobservable inputs are data, assumptions and judgements that
are not available publicly, but are relevant to the characteristics
of the assets being valued. Unobservable inputs are used to the
extent that sufficient relevant and reliable observable inputs are
not available for similar assets and liabilities.

Significant unobservable inputs used by Metro North include,
but are not limited to:

e Subjective adjustments made to observable data to take
account of the specialised nature of health service buildings
and on hospital-site residential facilities, including
historical and current construction contracts and cost
estimates; and

e Assessments of physical condition and remaining
useful life.

Fair Value Measurement Hierarchy

This note explains the judgements and estimates made

in determining the fair values of land and buildings that

are recognised and measured at fair value in the financial
statements. Metro North classify inputs to fair value into three
levels prescribed under AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement.

Level 1 represents fair value measurements that
reflect unadjusted quoted market prices
in active markets for identical assets
and liabilities;

Level 2 represents fair value measurements that are

substantially derived from inputs (other than
quoted prices included within level 1) that are
observable, either directly or indirectly; and




B5-3 Accounting Policies — measurement (continued)

Fair Value Hierarchy (continued)

Level 3  represents fair value measurements
that are substantially derived from

unobservable inputs.

None of Metro North’s valuations are eligible for
categorisation into level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.

There were no transfers of assets between fair value
hierarchy levels during the period.

Asset Fairvalue Details

category hierarchy

Land Fair value of land is based

on publicly available data on
recent sales of similar land in
nearby localities. Adjustments
were made to the sales data to
take into account the location
of the land, its size, street/road
frontage and access and any
significant restrictions.

Land is measured at fair value
utilising either independent
revaluation or applying

an interim revaluation
methodology using an
appropriate index.

Level 2

Buildings Level 2
— Non-
health
service

delivery

Non-health service delivery
buildings are measured at the
value that reflects the likely exit
price in the principal market

for an asset of this type, with
valuations based on recent
sales in the relevant areas.

Buildings Level 3
— Health

service

delivery

(special

purpose)

Reflecting the specialised
nature of health service
buildings and on-hospital-site
residential facilities, for which
there is no active market, fair
value is determined using

the current replacement cost
methodology.

Valuation Methodology

Metro North conducted an independent comprehensive
valuation of all special purpose building and site
improvement assets during 2019-20 in order to obtain

data required to adopt componentisation of its assets. The
valuations were prepared on a componentised basis by
rolling up building elements into eight specialised building
components to be individually reflected in the asset register
as sub-assets of a primary building asset.

Itis expected that Metro North will return to a rolling
three-year valuation program in 2020-21 to independently
assess and determine fair value for all buildings and

site improvements, while land will continue to be
independently assessed and fair value determined on a
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rolling a five-year valuation program. Any assets held at fair
value that are not selected for independent assessment in
the current year will continue to be revalued on an annual
basis using the appropriate and relevant indices provided by
independent experts.

There were no changes in the valuation technique used during
the financial year. The key assumption in using the current
replacement cost is determining a replacement cost of a
modern-day equivalent. The methodology makes a further
adjustment to total estimated life taking into consideration
physical and technical obsolescence impacting on the remaining
useful life to arrive at a current replacement cost via straight-line
depreciation.

To estimate the replacement costs of each component, each
element was quantified. The measurement of each element uses
‘key quantities’ including building footprint or gross floor area
(also used as the roof area), girth of the building, height of the
building, number and height of staircases and number of lifts
and number of floors.

These key quantities have been measured from drawings

and verified via an onsite inspection to replace, upgrade or
maintain these buildings. Furthermore, during the valuation
process Metro North agreed the useful lives with the valuer
with reference to the current buildings condition and potential
funding available in the future.

Use of Indices

In years where assets have not been comprehensively valued,
the valuations are kept materially up to date using relevant
indices for land and buildings. Indices used for land assets

were supplied by the State Valuation Service with reference to
land valuations undertaken for each local government area. The
indices used by the independent valuer for buildings assets
were based on local construction prices for the areas of Brisbane
and the surrounding South East Queensland area.

Use of Comprehensive Valuations

If a class of asset experiences significant and volatile changes
in fair value (i.e. where indicators such as property market and
construction cost movements suggest that the value of the class
of assets may have changed significantly from one reporting
period to the next), it is subject to such revaluations in the
reporting period.

Results of Valuation

In 2019-20, land was assessed using appropriate indices
supplied by the State Valuation Service. The cumulative
movement in land indices since the last comprehensive
valuation in 2016 is $7.08M which reduced $0.20M during 2019-
20 (2019: $7.28M).

For special purpose buildings (level 3), a total of 100% were
considered via indexation in 2018-19 resulting in a cumulative
indexation movement of $27.44M. In 2020 all special purpose
building assets have been comprehensively revalued at
component levels. The total net movement for the asset class

is an increment of $282.32M in 2019-20 which represents a net
increase of 35% to the book value. This increment in buildings is
the result of extensions to remaining useful lives and increases
in some of the construction price inputs used in determining the
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B5-3 Accounting Policies — measurement / Accounting for changes in Fair Value (continued)

replacement cost.

In 2018-19, comprehensive market valuations were
completed for the non-health delivery buildings (level 2)
which resulted in an increment of $0.08M. The indices
obtained for the non-health delivery buildings in 2019-20
(level 2) indicated no change to the valuation.

Any revaluation increments arising from the revaluation
of an asset are credited to the asset revaluation surplus
of the appropriate asset class, except to the extent it
reverses a revaluation decrement for the class previously
recognised as an expense. A decrease in the carrying
amount on revaluation is charged as an expense, to the
extent it exceeds the balance, if any, in the revaluation
surplus relating to that asset class.

Metro North has adopted the gross method of reporting
assets. This method restates separately the gross
amount and related accumulated depreciation of the
assets comprising the class of revalued assets (current
replacement cost). Accumulated depreciation is restated
proportionally in accordance with the independent advice
of the appointed valuer.

B5-4: Accounting policies - Depreciation
Land is not depreciated as it has an unlimited useful life.

Buildings are recognised via componentisation and
depreciated using the remaining useful lives of the
building’s components. This process provides more
reliable and relevant information to users of the financial
statements and asset managers. Where significant
components have materially different lives from the
complex asset, the impact may materially affect the
depreciation recognised during the financial year.

Plant and Equipment is depreciated on a straight-line
basis to reflect the consistent and even consumption of
the service potential of these assets over their useful life
to Metro North.

Any expenditure that increases the originally assessed
capacity or service potential of an asset is capitalised
and the new depreciable amount is depreciated over the
remaining useful life of the asset.

Key judgement:

Management estimates the useful lives and residual
values of buildings and plant and equipment based on
the expected period of time over which economic benefits
from the use of the asset will be derived. Management
reviews useful life assumptions on an annual basis having
considered variables including historical and forecast
usage rates, technological advancements and changes
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in legal and economic conditions. All depreciable assets
have a nil residual value.

For each class of depreciable assets, the following
depreciation rates were used:

Class Depreciation rates

Buildings 2.5% -3.33%

Plant and Equipment 5.0% - 20.0%

B5-5: Accounting policies - Impairment
Impairment Assessment

Metro North’s buildings are held at current replacement
cost under AASB 136 Impairment of Assets. As such, the
impairment requirements of AASB 136 do not apply to this
asset class. For assets measured at cost, no impairment
loss was recognised in 2019-20 (2019: $nil).

B6 LIABILITIES
B6-1: Payables

2020 2019
$°000 $'000
Trade creditors 162,650 91,197
Other creditors 71,543 43,641
Total 234,193 134,838

Accounting policy - Payables

Payables are recognised upon receipt of the goods
or services ordered and are measured at the agreed
purchase/contract price, gross of applicable trade
and other discounts. Amounts owing are unsecured
and are generally settled within the creditor’s normal
payment terms.
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B7 EQUITY

B7-1: Asset revaluation surplus

Balance 1 July 2019 53,450 155,753 517 209,720
Revaluation increments/(decrements) (201) 282,315 - 282,114
Balance 30 June 2020 53,249 438,068 517 491,834

Accounting policy — Revaluation surplus

The asset revaluation surplus represents the net effect of revaluation movements in assets. Refer to note B5 for
full disclosure.

B8 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

Accounting standard AASB 16 Leases became effective 1 July 2019, resulting in significant changes to Metro North’s
accounting for leases for which it is a lessee. The transitional impacts of the new standard are disclosed in note E1.

B8-1: Right-of-use assets

Cost 11,183 11,183
Less: Accumulated depreciation (5,524) (5,524)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2020 5,659 5,659

Represented by movement in carrying amount:

Carrying amount at 1 July 2019 11,183 11,183
Depreciation (5,524) (5,524)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2020 5,659 5,659

B8-2: Lease liabilities

Current
Lease liabilities 5,711 -
Total current 5,711 -

Accounting policy — Leases as a lessee

Metro North measures right-of-use assets from concessionary leases at cost on initial recognition, and measures all right-of-
use assets at cost subsequent to initial recognition. Metro North has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities arising from short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The lease payments are recognised as expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease term. An asset is considered low
value where it is expected to cost less than $10,000 when new.
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B8-2 Lease liabilities / Accounting policy — Leases as a lessee (continued)

Where a contract contains both a lease and material non-
lease components such as asset maintenance services,
Metro North allocates the contractual payments to each
component on the basis of their stand-alone prices.
However, for leases of plant and equipment, Metro

North has elected not to separate lease and non-lease
components and instead accounts for them as a single
lease component.

When measuring the lease liability, Metro North uses
its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate

SECTION C NOTES ABOUT RISKS AND
OTHER ACCOUNTING UNCERTAINTIES

C1 FINANCIAL RISK DISCLOSURES
C1-1: Financial instrument categories

Metro North has the following categories of financial assets
and financial liabilities:

where the interest rate implicit in the lease cannot 2020 2019
be read.ily determined. To determine the incremeptal Category Notes $'000 $'000
borrowing rate, Metro North uses loan rates provided by ) .
Queensland Treasury Corporation that correspond to the Financial assets
commencement date and term of the lease. Cash and cash B1 132,354 117,803
. . . ivalent
(i) Details of leasing arrangements as lessee equivalents
Receivables B2-1 129,812 97,778
Category/Class of Description of Arrangement Total 262,166 215,581
Lease Arrangement
Plant and Metro North leases a number of . ey arens
. . . . Financial liabilities
equipment leases medical equipment items as part
of an embedded lease within a Lease liabilites B8-2 5,711
service agreement. , Payables B6-1 234,193 134,838
The remaining lease term for this
arrangement is 1.08 years. Total 239,904 134,838

(ii) Office accommodation and motor vehicles

The Department of Housing and Public Works (DHPW)
provides Metro North with access to office accommodation
and motor vehicles under government-wide frameworks.
These arrangements are categorised as procurement

of services rather than as leases because DHPW has
substantive substitution rights over the assets. The related
service expenses are included as “Rental expenses” in
note A3-1.

2018-19 disclosures under AASB 117

Operating lease commitments at 30 June 2019

2019
$’°000
No later than 1 year* 10,407
Later than 1 year but no later than 5 16,577
years*
Later than 5 years 71
Total 27,055

* includes restated values for prior year transposition error
(previously published as “No later than 1 year” $4.897M and
“Later than 1 year but no later than 5 years” $10.098M).
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Accounting policy - Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
Statement of financial position when Metro North becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

Metro North holds financial instruments in the form of
cash and cash equivalents and receivables (excluding
prepayments) and payables.

C1-2 Financial risk management

Metro North’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks
— credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk.

(@) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the potential for financial loss arising from a
counterparty defaulting on its obligations. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at balance date is equal to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset, inclusive

of any allowance for impairment. The carrying amount of
financial assets, which are disclosed in more detail in note
B2, represents the maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date.

No financial assets and financial liabilities have been offset
and presented net in the Statement of financial position,
except for GST. No collateral is held as security and no credit
enhancements relate to financial assets held by Metro North.

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk.



C1-2 Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that Metro North will not have
the resources required at a particular time to meet its
obligations to settle its financial liabilities.

Metro North is exposed to liquidity risk through its trading
in the normal course of business and aims to reduce the
exposure to liquidity risk by ensuring that sufficient funds
are available to meet employee and supplier obligations

at all times. An approved debt facility of $39.5M

(2019: $23M) under the whole-of-government banking
arrangements to manage any short-term cash shortfalls has
been established. No funds had been withdrawn against
this debt facility as at 30 June 2020.

The following table sets out the liquidity risk of financial
liabilities held by Metro North. They represent the
contractual maturity of financial liabilities, calculated
based on undiscounted cash flows relating to the liabilities
at reporting date.

2020 <1 1-5 5
year years years
Category $000 $°000 $°000  $°000
Payables 234,193 234,193
Lease 5,711 5,560 151
liabilities
Total 239,904 239,753 151 -

(c) Interest Rate Risk

Metro North has interest rate exposure on its 24-hour call
deposits however there is no risk on its cash deposits.

Metro North does not undertake any hedging in relation to
interest rate risk.

Changes in interest rate have a minimal effect on the
operating result of Metro North.
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C2 COMMITMENTS
(a) Capital expenditure commitments

Material classes of capital expenditure commitments
exclusive of anticipated GST, contracted for at reporting
date but not recognised in the accounts are payable as
follows:

2020 2019
$'000 $'000
No later than 1 year 66,470 7,447
Later than 1 year but - -
no later than 5 years
Later than 5 years - -
Total 66,470 7,447

(b) Future lease commitments Surgical, Treatment and
Rehabilitation Service (STARS)

Located at the former Royal Children’s Hospital site at
Herston, the Heston Quarter is being developed under a
consortium led by Australian Unity.

Australian Unity’s scope of work includes the construction
of a new hospital “STARS”, which is being delivered under
a public-private partnership lease arrangement with
Metro North. The building will provide an approximate
35,000 sgm facility which includes 100 rehabilitation
beds, special purpose rehabilitation support areas,

and a surgical and endoscopic centre with a thirty-two-
bed surgical inpatient room, seven operating theatres,
three endoscopy rooms and recovery spaces. STARS is
scheduled to open in late 2020.

The land on which STARS will be developed is owned by
Metro North and will be leased to Australian Unity for 99
years.

Metro North is contractually obligated to occupy the
STARS building and upon completion will enter into a lease
for an initial 20-year period, with an option to extend this
lease by two periods of 10 years (40 years in total). At the
commencement date (currently expected to be late 2020),
the lease liability will be calculated as the present value

of the future lease repayments, discounted using the QTC
fixed rate loan interest rate at that date for the period
which aligns with the length of the lease agreement.
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C2 Commitments (continued)

(b) Future lease commitments Surgical, Treatment and
Rehabilitation Service (STARS) (continued)

Additional operating leases have been entered for
equipment relating to the operation of STARS.

The total estimated future cash outflows relating to the
cost of leasing the STARS building and related equipment
items are shown below:

2020 2019*
$'000  $'000
Outflows
Not later than 1 year 18,536
Later than 1 year but not later 102,103 93,713
than 5 years
Later than 5 years 434,663 456,968
Total estimated cash outflows 555,302 550,681

Other contractual expenditure commitments relating to
the operation of STARS are as follows:

2020 2019*
$'000  $'000
Outflows
Not later than 1 year 7,362
Later than 1 year but not later 43,899 28,518
than 5 years
Later than 5 years 278,137 279,312
Total estimated cash outflows 329,398 307,829

*2018-19 figures have been restated to allocate the future
payments for ongoing maintenance of the asset from
capital to operating commitments and to include minor
works expenditure.
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C3 CONTINGENCIES

As at 30 June 2020, the following cases were filed in the
courts naming the State of Queensland acting through
Metro North as defendant:

2020 2019
Number Number
of cases of cases
Federal 2
Supreme Court 12 8
District Court 3
Magistrates Court
Tribunals, commissions and boards 8 4
26 16

(a) Litigation in Progress

Itis not possible to make a reliable estimate of the final
amount payable, if any, in respect of the litigation before
the courts at this time. Health litigation is underwritten

by the Queensland Government Insurance Fund (QGIF).
Metro North’s maximum exposure is limited to an excess
per insurance event up to $20,000. The majority of the
above litigation is covered within Metro North’s QGIF policy
such that Metro North’s net exposure is not expected to be
material.

(b) Contractual Contingencies

Metro North has entered and received various contractual
contingencies through the year, primarily in the form

of indemnities. Those indemnities have been given in
accordance with the requirements of the Statutory Bodies
Financial Arrangements Act 1982 (Qld) and recorded
through the Contingency Management System.



C4 FUTURE IMPACT OF ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
NOT YET EFFECTIVE

At the date of authorisation of the financial report,
the expected impacts of new or amended Australian
Accounting Standards issued but with future effective
dates are set out below:

AASB 1059 Service Concession Arrangements: Grantors

AASB 1059 will first apply to Metro North financial
statements in 2020-21. This standard defines service
concession arrangements and applies a new control
concept to the recognition of service concession assets
and related liabilities.

Metro North has completed a review of its current
contractual arrangements in preparation for this new
standard. No impact is expected at the date of initial
application.

In analysing the effects of this standard on Metro North,
the following contractual arrangements were considered:
Butterfield Street Car Park, The Prince Charles Hospital
Car Park, The Prince Charles Hospital Early Education
Centre, STARS, Caboolture Private Hospital, Holy Spirit
Northside Private Hospital and Herston Imaging Research
Facility (HIRF).

Except for HIRF, these contractual arrangements were
assessed as falling under AASB 16 Leases which became
effective from 1 July 2019. Refer to note B8 for the relevant
Lease/Right of Use disclosures. HIRF was assessed as
being within scope of AASB 11 Joint Arrangements. Refer
to note C5 for the relevant disclosures.

All other Australian accounting standards and
interpretations with future effective dates are either not
applicable or have no material impact on activities of
Metro North.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

C5 JOINT ARRANGEMENTS

Metro North has joint control over two arrangements:
Herston Imaging Research Facility (HIRF) and the Oral
Health Centre (OHC). Both arrangements have been
assessed as joint operations.

HIRF is located in Herston, Brisbane, on land that is
owned by Metro North. This alliance agreement is with
the University of Queensland (UQ), the Council of the
Queensland Institute of Medical Research (QIMR) and
Queensland University of Technology (QUT).

The OHCis located in Herston, Brisbane, on land owned
by UQ, with whom Metro North has an alliance agreement.

The joint arrangements had no contingent liabilities or
capital commitments as at 30 June 2019 and 2020.

Accounting policy - Joint Arrangements

Ajoint operation is an arrangement whereby the parties
(joint operators) that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the assets, and obligations for the
liabilities, relating to the arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control. The considerations made in determining
joint control are similar to those necessary to determine
control over subsidiaries. In relation to its interest in joint
operations, Metro North recognises its:

e Assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;
e Liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred
jointly;

e Revenue from the sale of its share of output arising
from the joint operation;

e Share of revenue from the sale of output by the joint
operation; and

e Expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred
jointly.

C6 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There are no matters or circumstances that have arisen
since 30 June 2020 that have significantly affected, or
may significantly affect Metro North’s operations, the
results of those operations, or its state of affairs in future
financial years.
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SECTION D WHAT WE LOOK AFTER ON
BEHALF OF THIRD PARTIES

D1 GRANTED PRIVATE PRACTICE

Granted Private Practice permits Senior Medical Officers

(SMOs) and Visiting Medical Officers (VMOs) employed in
the public health system to treat individuals who elect to
be treated as private patients.

Granted Private Practice provides the option for SMOs and
VMOs to either assign all of their private practice revenue
to Metro North (assignment arrangement) and in return
receive an allowance, or for SMOs and VMOs to share in
the revenue generated from billing patients and to pay
service fees to Metro North (retention arrangement).

All monies received for Granted Private Practice

are deposited into separate bank accounts that are
administered by Metro North on behalf of the Granted
Private Practice SMOs and VMOs. These accounts are not
reported in Metro North’s Statement of financial position.

All assignment option receipts, retention option services
fees and service retention fees are included as revenue in
the Statement of comprehensive income of Metro North
on an accrual basis. The funds are then subsequently
transferred from the Granted Private Practice bank
accounts into Metro North operating and general trust
bank accounts (for the service retention fee portion).

2020 2019
$'000 $'000
Receipts
Billings - (SMOs and VMOs) 65,186 67,378
Interest 65 96
Total receipts 65,251 67,474
Payments
Payments to medical 17,436 17,274
practitioners
Hospital and Health Service 44,330 47,045
recoverable administrative costs
Hospital and Health Service 3,670 3,808
education/travel fund
Total payments 65,436 68,127
Closing balance of bank account 5,641 5,827

under a trust fund arrangement
not yet disbursed and not
restricted cash
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D2 FIDUCIARY TRUST TRANSACTIONS
AND BALANCES

Metro North acts in a fiduciary capacity in relation to a
number of patient trust bank accounts. Consequently,
these transactions and balances are not recognised in

the financial statements. Although patient funds are not
controlled by Metro North, trust activities are included in
the audit performed by the Auditor-General of Queensland.

2020 2019
$'000 $'000
Opening balance 352 312
Patient trust receipts 5,900 5,626
Patient trust payments (6,037) (5,586)
Patient trust transfers* (4)
Closing balance 211 352

(represented by cash)

*$3,950 in Patient Trust discrepancy was identified and
transferred to Metro North General Trust account in May
2020 for the purpose of patient amenities.

D3 RESTRICTED ASSETS

Metro North receives cash contributions primarily from
private practice clinicians and external entities for the
provision of education, study and research in clinical
areas. Contributions are also received from benefactors
in the form of gifts, bequests, donations and legacies for
specific purposes. At 30 June 2020, an amount of $33.8M
(2019: $25.5M) in General Trust is set aside for specified
purposes defined by the contribution.



SECTION E OTHER INFORMATION

E1 FIRST YEAR APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS
OR CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

Change in Accounting Policy

Metro North did not voluntarily change any of its
accounting policies in 2019-20.

Three new accounting standards with material impact
were applied for the first time in 2019-20:

e AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
e AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities
e AASB 16 Leases

The effect of adopting these new standards are detailed
below. No other accounting standards or interpretations
that apply to Metro North for the first time in 2019-20 have
any material impact on the financial statements.

AASB 15 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

Metro North applied AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers for the first time in 2019-20. The nature and
effect of changes resulting from the adoption of AASB 15
are described below.

AASB 15 establishes a new five-step model for
determining how much and when revenue from contracts
with customers is recognised.

AASB 15 also specifies the accounting for incremental
costs of obtaining a contract and costs directly related to
fulfilling a contract.

The standard requires contract assets (accrued revenue)
and contract liabilities (unearned revenue) to be

shown separately and requires contract assets to be
distinguished from receivables.

Refer to new disclosures within note A1.
Transitional impact
Transitional policies adopted are as follows:

e Metro North applied the modified retrospective
transition method and has not restated comparative
information for 2018-19, which continue to be reported
under AASB 118 Revenue, AASB 111 Construction
Contracts, and related interpretations.

e Metro North elected to apply the standard
retrospectively to all contracts, including completed
contracts, at 1 July 2019. Completed contracts
include contracts where Metro North had recognised
all of the revenue in prior periods under AASB 1004
Contributions.

e Metro North applied a practical expedient to reflect,
on transition, the aggregate effect of all contract
modification that occurred before 1 July 2019.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

User charges and fees

To align with new terminology in AASB 15, accrued
revenue and unearned revenue arising from contracts
with customers have been renamed as contract assets
and contract liabilities respectively. They are separately
disclosed in notes B2.

Revenue is recognised when each performance obligation
is satisfied. There has been no change to the timing of
revenue recognition with the adoption of AASB 15.

Grants and contributions

Three of Metro North’s Commonwealth grants (Transition
care, Aged care, Organ and tissue donation and
transplantation) were identified as contracts with
customer within the scope of AASB 15. Revenue under
these grants is recognised when or as the services were
performed. There has been no change to the timing of
revenue recognition with the adoption of AASB 15. The
funding is received on a claims or reimbursement basis,
hence, no contract liability is required to be recognised for
these grants.

AASB 1058 INCOME OF NOT-FOR-PROFIT ENTITIES

Metro North applied AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit
Entities for the first time in 2019-20. The nature and effect
of changes resulting from the adoption of AASB 1058 are
described below.

1. Scope and revenue recognition under AASB 1058

AASB 1058 applies to transactions where Metro North
acquires an asset for significantly less than fair value
principally to enable Metro North to further its objective,
and to the receipt of volunteer services.

Metro North’s revenue line items recognised under this
standard from 1 July 2019 include most Grants and other
contributions, and some items of Other revenue in note A1-3.

For specific-purpose capital grants, the funding received
is initially deferred in an unearned revenue liability and
subsequently recognised as revenue as or when Metro
North satisfies the obligations under the agreement.

2. Transitional impact
Transitional policies adopted are as follows:

e Metro North applied the modified retrospective
transition method and has not restated comparative
information for 2018-19. They continue to be reported
under relevant standards applicable in 2018-19, such as
AASB 1004.

e Metro North elected to apply the standard
retrospectively to all contracts, including completed
contracts, at 1 July 2019. Completed contracts are
contracts where Metro North had recognised all of the
revenue in prior periods under AASB 1004.

e Metro North applied a practical expedient to not
remeasure at fair value assets previously acquired
for significantly less than fair value and originally
recorded at cost.
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E1 First Year Application of New Standards or
Change in Accounting Policy (continued)

Revenue recognition for most grants and contributions did
not change under AASB 1058, as compared to AASB 1004.
Revenue has continued to be recognised when Metro
North gains control of the asset (e.g. cash or receivable) in
most instances.

There were no significant differences in financial
statement line items as a result of the implementation of
this standard.

AASB 16 LEASES

Metro North applied AASB 16 Leases for the first time in
2019-20. Metro North applied the modified retrospective
transition method and has not restated comparative
information for 2018-19, which continue to be reported
under AASB 117 Leases and related interpretations.

The nature and effect of changes resulting from the
adoption of AASB 16 are described below.

1. Definition of a lease

AASB 16 introduced new guidance on the definition of
a lease.

For leases and lease-like arrangements existing at 30
June 2019, Metro North elected to apply the practical
expedient to grandfather the previous assessments made
under AASB 117 and Interpretation 4 Determining whether
an Arrangement contains a Lease about whether those
contracts contained leases. However, arrangements were
reassessed under AASB 16 where lease agreements were
modified on 1 July 2019.

Amendments to former operating leases for office
accommodation and vehicle fleet arrangements

In 2018-19, Metro North held operating leases under
AASB 117 from the Department of Housing and Public
Works (DHPW) for non-specialised commercial office
accommodation through the Queensland Government
Accommodation Office (QGAO) and vehicle fleets provided
through QFleet.

Effective 1 July 2019, the framework agreements that
govern QGAO and QFleet were amended with the result
that these arrangements would not meet the definition
of a lease under AASB 16 and therefore are exempt from
lease accounting. These amounts are disclosed as “Rental
expenses” in note A3-1.

From 2019-20 onward, the costs for these services
are expensed as supplies and services when incurred.
The new accounting treatment is due to a change in
the contractual arrangements rather than a change in
accounting policy.
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2. Changes to lessee accounting

Previously, Metro North classified its leases as operating
or finance leases based on whether the lease transferred
significantly all of the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the asset to the lessee.

This distinction between operating and finance leases
no longer exist for lessee accounting under AASB 16.
From 1 July 2019, all leases, other than short-term leases
and leases of low value assets, are now recognised on
balance sheet as lease liabilities and right-of-use assets
in note B8.

3. Changes to lessor accounting

Lessor accounting remains largely unchanged under AASB
16. Leases are still classified as either operating or finance
leases. However, the classification of subleases now
references the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease, instead of the underlying asset.

4. Transitional impact
Former operating leases as lessee

As at 1 July 2019 only one contract was deemed material
for the application of AASB 16.

On transition, lease liability was measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments discounted at
Metro North’s incremental borrowing rate at 1 July 2019,
as represented by the Queensland Treasury Corporation
Fixed Rate Loan rates that correspond with the lease
commencement month and lease term. The average
applicable rate on 1 July 2019 was 1.434%.

The right-of-use asset was measured at an amount equal
to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any
prepaid or accrued lease payments.

The new right-of-use asset was tested for impairment on
transition and was found to be not impaired.

On transition, Metro North used practical expedients to:

e notrecognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for leases that end within 12 months of the date of
initial application and leases of low value assets;

e exclude initial direct costs from the measurement of
right-of-use assets; and

e use hindsight when determining the lease term.

The following table summarises the on-transition
adjustments to asset and liability balances at 1 July 2019
in relation to former operating leases.



E1 First year application of new standards or change
in accounting policy (continued)

E1-1: Impact on Transition of AASB 16

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

$°000
Right-of-use assets — Plant and equipment 11,183
Lease liabilities 11,183
Leases as lessor
No transitional adjustments were required for leases in which Metro North is lessor.
Reconciliation of operating lease commitments at 30 June 2019 to the lease liabilities at 1 July 2019
$’000
Total undiscounted operating lease commitments at 30 June 2019 27,054
- discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at 1 July 2019 (1.4%) (551)
Present value of operating lease commitments 26,503
- less internal-to-government arrangements that are no longer leases (14,694)
- less leases with remaining lease term of less than 12 months (23)
- less leases deemed immaterial for recognition purposes (914)
- add/less adjustments due to lease payments 311
Lease liabilities at 1 July 2019 11,183

Accounting Standards early adopted for 2019-20

Metro North did not adopt any applicable Australian
Accounting Standards early in the 2019-20 financial year.

E2 IMPACT OF COVID19

On 27 February 2020, the Prime Minister of Australia
activated the Australian Health Sector Emergency Response
Plan in response to the outbreak of the Novel Coronavirus
or COVID-19. The state of Queensland responded to this
with a Pandemic Plan led by the Queensland Disaster
Management Committee. The impact of the COVID-19
pandemic on Metro North has been assessed as follows:

Revenue

As disclosed in note A-1, the Commonwealth and State
Government have agreed to reimburse direct costs related
to the health care response to COVID-19. Additional funding
of $42.9M has been provided to Metro North under the
National Partnership Agreement (NPA) for direct costs
relating to COVID-19.

Direct expenses

Metro North has incurred additional expenditure of
$44.2M. Direct expense incurred relating to COVID-19
have been reimbursed via the NPA totalling $42.9M.
These expenses related to Metro North’s response to the
pandemic including staffing of fever clinics, expansion of

Emergency Department and Intensive Care Unit capacity,
Emergency Operations Centre, Virtual Wards, increased
cleaning activities and clinical consumables. Some of the
expenditure incurred by Metro North does not qualify for
reimbursement under the terms of the NPA.

Health care delivery activity

Despite the impacts of COVID-19 Metro North has
delivered on all health care activity requirements under
the Service Agreement with the Department of Health.
Health care activity requirements are subject to an annual
reconciliation process in accordance with the Service
Agreement.

Asset valuation

All of Metro North’s specialised building assets were
comprehensively valued by a qualified valuer in 2020. The
replacement cost unit rates adopted in the valuation are
based on estimates of cost at the valuation date on the
assumption that the COVID-19 pandemic did not occur.

It is the opinion of the qualified valuer that if any impact
from the pandemic on the construction market exists, this
impact on the replacement cost of the assets will be short-
term and that the construction market in Queensland will
recover; therefore, the long-term impact on the valuation of
the assets would not be material.

Metro North will engage a qualified valuer to undertake a
full desktop review of asset values in 2021 to ensure values
reported remain appropriate.
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E2 Impact of COVID19 (continued)

Collectability of receivables

Debt impairment has not been significantly affected by
COVID-19. Metro North’s main income sources are the
Queensland Government, Medicare and health insurance
companies which are expected to be financially stable to
withstand any adverse COVID-19 impacts.

Where individual patients are responsible for payment
Metro North is continuing to monitor the impact on these
receivables. As the pandemic is a relatively recent and an
on-going event, no significant change in recoverability of
debt has become apparent at this point. These accounts
make up a minor portion of Metro North’s overall
receivables profile.

E3 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions with Queensland Government controlled
entities

Metro North is controlled by its ultimate parent entity, the
State of Queensland. All State of Queensland controlled
entities meet the definition of a related party in AASB 124
Related Party Disclosures.

The following table summarises significant transactions
with Queensland Government controlled entities:
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E3-1: Related Party Transactions- Department of Health

2020 2019
$°000 $°000
Revenue received 2,866,827 2,613,053
Expenditure incurred 329,355 302,367
Receivables 44,580 14,435
Payables 159,754 12,695

E3-2: Related Party Transactions- Queensland Treasury
Corporation

2020 2019
$°000 $°000
Revenue received 409 669
Expenditure incurred 39 2,978
Receivables 33,515 24,457
Payables 4 3




E3 Related party transactions (continued)

(a) Department of Health

Metro North receives funding in accordance with a service
agreement with the Department of Health. The Department
of Health receives its revenue from the Queensland
Government (majority of funding) and the Commonwealth.
Metro North is funded for eligible services through block
funding; activity based funding or a combination of both.
Activity based funding is based on an agreed number of
activities per the service agreement and a state-wide price
by which relevant activities are funded. Block funding is
not based on levels of public care activity.

The funding from the Department of Health is provided
predominantly for specific public health services
purchased by the Department of Health from Metro
North in accordance with a service agreement between
the Department of Health and Metro North. The service
agreement is reviewed periodically and updated for
changes in activities and prices of services delivered by
Hospital and Health Service.

The signed service agreement is published on the
Queensland Government website and is publicly available.

The Department of Health provides a number of services
including, ambulatory services, procurement, payroll,
pharmacy, biomedical technology services, pathology,
superannuation (QSuper) payments, information
technology infrastructure and support as well as accounts
payable services. Any expenses paid by the Department
of Health on behalf of Metro North for these services are
recouped by the Department of Health.

(b) Queensland Treasury Corporation

Metro North has bank accounts with the Queensland
Treasury Corporation for general trust monies and receive
interest and incur bank fees on these bank accounts.

Other

There are no other individually significant transactions
with related parties.

Transactions with other related parties

All transactions in the year ended 30 June 2020 between
Metro North and key management personnel, including
their related parties were on commercial terms and
conditions and were immaterial in nature.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

E4 TAXATION

Metro North is a State body as defined under the

Income Tax Assessment Act 1936 and is exempt from
Commonwealth taxation with the exception of Fringe
Benefits Tax (FBT) and Goods and Services Tax (GST). FBT
and GST are the only Commonwealth taxes recognised by
Metro North.

The Australian Taxation Office (ATO) has recognised the
Department of Health and sixteen Hospital and Health
Services as a single taxation entity for reporting purposes.
All FBT and GST reporting to the Commonwealth is managed
centrally by the Department of Health, with payments/
receipts made on behalf of Metro North reimbursed to/
from the Department of Health on a monthly basis. GST
credits receivable from, and GST payable to the ATO, are
recognised on this basis.
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SECTION F
BUDGET v ACTUAL COMPARISON

NB: A budget versus actual comparison and explanation of
major variances has not been included for the Statement of
Changes in Equity, as major variances relating to that statement
have been addressed in explanation of major variances in the
other statements.

F1 BUDGET VS ACTUAL COMPARISON -
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Grants and other contributions — The notable variances
relate to income recognised from the RBWH Foundation

for the transfer of Clinical Trial funds $7.6M, an increase in
services received below fairvalue $1.5M and grant money
recognised of $0.5M for the construction of a Youth Cancer
Centre.

Other revenue - The variance to budget relates to NDIS
receipts of $8M, inter-entity capital recoveries $3.6M, and
rental income of $3.5M

Health Service employee expenses - The variance to

budget relates to changes in employer arrangements within
Queensland Health with all non-executive employees of
Metro North transferring to the Director General from 15 June
2020 (Note A2-1)

Depreciation and Amortisation - The variance to budget
relates to the timeframes for commissioning of completed
capital work in progress, valuation increments, new asset
acquisitions and depreciation charges for a Right of Use
asset (Note B8)

F2 BUDGET VS ACTUAL COMPARISON — STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Cash and cash equivalents - The variance to budget relates
to $30.6M receivedin June for STARS commissioning work
which will be spent in 2020-21, deferred funding to 2020-
21, of $24.9M for STARS FF&E and timing differences in
payments of receivables and payables.

Property, plant and equipment - The variance to budget
relates to a building valuation increment recognised of
$282M (Note B5-1) and additional capital expenditure of
$26.3M for Priority Capital Program, Caboolture Mental
Health, Herston Bio fabrication and Information Technology

Payables - The notable variances relate to a payable for
Health Service Contract Labour $79M (Note A2-1) and the
recognition of year end technical adjustment between Metro
North and the Department of Health $29.2M
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Accrued Employee Benefits - The variance to budget
relates to changes in employer arrangements with all
non-executive employees of Metro North transferring
to the Director General $79M (Note A2-1), which is now
recognised as a payable to the Department of Health

F3 BUDGET VS ACTUAL COMPARISON - STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

Grants and other contributions — The notable variances
relate to income recognised from the RBWH Foundation

for the transfer of Clinical Trial funds $7.6M, an increase in
services received below fair value $1.5M and grant money
recognised of $0.5M for the construction of a Youth Cancer
Centre

Payments for property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets - The budget recognises only cash outflows for
projects funded by Metro North. Metro North actually pays
for all capital and are reimbursed from the Department of
Health monthly in arrears which included such projects as
health technology equipment replacement $35.7M, priority
capital projects $27.3M, Redcliffe car park $15.3M and
Caboolture redevelopment $14.4M

Cash flow from equity transferred - The budget recognises
no cash impact for Department of Health funded projects.

Metro North actually pays for all capital and are reimbursed
for Department of Health funded projects monthly in arrears

Cash flow from equity withdrawals - The variance to
budget relates depreciation and amortisation funding being
treated as a cash item (equity withdrawal) in the budget,
however this has been accounted as a non-cash item in the
statement of cash flow
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MANAGEMENT CERTIFICATE

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared pursuant to s.62(1) of the
Financial Accountability Act 2009 (the Act), section 42 of the Financial and Performance
Management Standard 2009 and other prescribed requirements. In accordance with s.62(1)(b)
of the Act, we certify that in our opinion:

(@) the prescribed requirements for establishing and keeping the accounts have been complied with
in all material respects; and

(b) the financial statements have been drawn up to present a true and fair view, in accordance
with prescribed accounting standards, of the transactions of Metro North Hospital and Health
Service for the financial year ended 30 June 2020 and of the financial position of the Metro North
Hospital and Health Service at the end of that year; and

We acknowledge responsibility under S8 and S15 of the Financial and Performance
Management Standard 2009 for the establishment and maintenance, in all material respects,
of an appropriate and effective system of internal controls and risk management processes
with respect to financial reporting throughout the reporting period.

/ rJim McGowan AM

oard Chai
Date: 2 August 2020

Chief Executive
Date: 25 August 2020

i Melissa MacCabe
%&Z 2020.08.25
14:13:00 +10'00"
Ms Melissa MacCabe CA

Chief Finance and Corporate Officer
Date: 24 August 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

® Queensland
® ® Audit Office

Better public services

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Board of Metro North Hospital and Health Service

Report on the audit of the financial report

Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial report of Metro North Hospital and Health Service.
In my opinion, the financial report:

a) gives a true and fair view of the entity's financial position as at 30 June 2020, and its
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended

b)  complies with the Financial Accountability Act 2009, the Financial and Performance
Management Standard 2019 and Australian Accounting Standards.

The financial report comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2020, the
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, notes to the financial statements including summaries of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the management
certificate.

Basis for opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with the Auditor-General Auditing Standards, which
incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section
of my report.

I am independent of the entity in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting
Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in Australia. | have
also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code and the
Auditor-General Auditing Standards.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for my opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, were of most
significance in my audit of the financial report of the current period. | addressed these matters

in the context of my audit of the financial report as a whole, and in forming my opinion thereon,
and | do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Valuation of specialised buildings $989.96 million

Refer note B5 in the financial report.

Description

How my audit addressed the key audit matter

Buildings were material to Metro North
Hospital and Health Service at balance date
and were measured at fair value using the
current replacement cost method.

Metro North Hospital and Health Service
performed a comprehensive revaluation over
all its buildings this year.

The current replacement cost method
comprises:

« gross replacement cost, less
+ accumulated depreciation.

Metro North Hospital and Health Service
derived the gross replacement cost of its
buildings at the balance date using unit prices
that required significant judgements for:

+ identifying the components of buildings
with separately identifiable replacement
costs

« developing a unit rate for each of these
components, including:

- estimating the current cost for a
modern substitute (including locality
factors and on costs)

- identifying whether the existing building
contains obsolescence or less utility
compared to the modern substitute,
and if so estimating the adjustment to
the unit rate required to reflect this
difference.

«  The measurement of accumulated
depreciation involved significant
judgements for forecasting the remaining
useful lives of building components.

The significant judgements required for gross

replacement cost and useful lives are also

significant judgements for calculating annual
depreciation expense.

My procedures included, but were not limited to:

.

assessing the adequacy of management's
review of the valuation process and results.

reviewing the scope and instructions provided
to the valuer.

assessing the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology and the underlying assumptions
with reference to common industry practices.

assessing the appropriateness of the
components of buildings used for measuring
gross replacement cost with reference to
common industry practices

assessing the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the experts used to develop the
models

for unit rates associated with buildings that
were comprehensively revalued this year:

- on a sample basis, evaluating the
relevance, completeness and accuracy of
source data used to derive the unit rate of
the modern substitute (including locality
factors and oncosts)

- adjustment for excess quality or
obsolescence.

evaluating the relevance and appropriateness
of the indices used for changes in cost inputs
by comparing to other relevant external indices

evaluating useful life estimates for
reasonableness by:

- reviewing management's annual
assessment of useful lives

- atan aggregated level, reviewing asset
management plans for consistency
between renewal budgets and the gross
replacement cost of assets

- ensuring that no building asset still in use
has reached or exceeded its useful life

- enquiring of management about their plans
for assets that are nearing the end of their
useful life

- reviewing assets with an inconsistent
relationship between condition and
remaining useful life.

Where changes in useful lives were identified,
evaluating whether the effective dates of the
changes applied for depreciation expense
were supported by appropriate evidence.
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Implementation of new finance system

Refer to the Basis of Financial Preparation in the financial report

Description

How my audit addressed the key audit matter

Implementation of new finance system

| have reported issues relating to internal control

The Department of Health (the department) is ~ Weaknesses identified during the course of my

the shared service provider to Metro North
Hospital and Health Service for the

management of the financial management .
information system, and processing of

accounts payable transactions in the system.

The department replaced its primary financial
management information system on
1 August 2019.

The financial management system is used to
prepare the general-purpose financial
statements. It is also the general ledger and it
interfaces with other software that manages
revenue, payroll and certain expenditure
streams. Its modules are used for inventory
and accounts payable management.

The replacement of the financial management
system increased the risk of fraud and error in
the control environment of the departmentand  *
Metro North Hospital and Health Service.

The implementation of the financial
management system was a significant
business and IT project for the department
and Metro North Hospital and Health Service.
It included:
+ designing and implementing IT general
controls and application controls
« cleansing and migrating of vendor and
open purchase order master data
« ensuring accuracy and completeness of
closing balances transferred from the
old system to the new system
« establishing system interfaces with
other key software programs
« establishing and implementing new
workflow processes.

audit to those charged with governance.
My procedures included, but were not limited to:

assessing the appropriateness of the IT
general and application level controls including
system configuration of the financial
management system by:

- reviewing the access profiles of users with
system wide access

- reviewing the delegations and segregation
of duties

- reviewing the design, implementation, and
effectiveness of the key general
information technology controls.

validating account balances from the old
system to the new system to verify the
accuracy and completeness of data migrated

documenting and understanding the change in
process and controls for how material
transactions are processed, and balances are
recorded

assessing and reviewing controls temporarily

put in place due to changing system and

procedural updates

undertaking significant volume of sample

testing to obtain sufficient appropriate audit

evidence, including:

- verifying the validity of journals processed
pre and post go-live

- verifying the accuracy and occurrence of
changes to bank account details

- comparing vendor and payroll bank
account details

- verifying the completeness and accuracy of
vendor payments, including testing for
potential duplicate payments

assessing the reasonableness of:

- the inventory stocktakes for completeness
and accuracy

- the mapping of the general ledger to the
financial statement line items.
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Other information

Other information comprises the information included in the entity's annual report for the year
ended 30 June 2020, but does not include the financial report and my auditor's report thereon.

Those charged with governance are responsible for the other information.

My opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly | do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial report, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial report or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, | am required to report that fact.

| have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of the entity for the financial report

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair
view in accordance with the Financial Accountability Act 2009, the Financial and Performance
Management Standard 2019 and Australian Accounting Standards, and for such internal
control as the Board determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report
that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The Board is also responsible for assessing the entity's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless it is intended to abolish the entity or to otherwise cease operations.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial report

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a
whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this
financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, | exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. This is not done for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal controls, but allows me
to express an opinion on compliance with prescribed requirements.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the entity.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the entity's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity's ability
to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am
required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. | base my
conclusions on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the entity to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with the Board regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that | identify during my audit.

From the matters communicated with the Board, | determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial report of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. | describe these matters in my auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, |
determine that a matter should not be communicated in my report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Statement

In accordance with s.40 of the Auditor-General Act 2009, for the year ended 30 June 2020:
a) lreceived all the information and explanations | required.

b) I consider that, the prescribed requirements in relation to the establishment and keeping
of accounts were complied with in all material respects.

Prescribed requirements scope

The prescribed requirements for the establishment and keeping of accounts are contained in
the Financial Accountability Act 2009, any other Act and the Financial and Performance
Management Standard 2019. The applicable requirements include those for keeping financial
records that correctly record and explain the entity's transactions and account balances to
enable the preparation of a true and fair financial report.

- ( ) M) 26 August 2020
C G Strickland - /- Jnr ”’E Queensland Audit Office
as delegate of the Auditor-General Brisbane
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Name Board Executive Safety & Quality Finance & Risk & Audit
Committee Committee Performance Committee
Committee

11 meetings 4 meetings 6 meetings 5 meetings 4 meetings
Board Chair — Mr 20f2 1o0f1 NA NA NA
Jim McGowan AM
Board Chair 80of 9 30f3 30f5 NA NA
— Emeritus
Professor Robert
Stable AM
Deputy Chair - 11 of 11 4 of 4 6 of 6 NA 4 of 4
Dr Kim Forrester
Board Member — 9 of 11 3of4 NA NA 20of 4
Mr Adrian Carson
Board Member 11 of 11 3of4 NA 50f5 NA
— Mr Bernard
Curran
Board Member — 10 of 11 4 of 4 NA 4 0of 5 NA
Ms Bonny Barry
Board Member — 10 of 11 3of4 NA 4 of 5 4of 4
Mr Geoff Hardy
Board Member 10 of 11 3of4 NA NA 4of 4
— Associate
Professor Kim
Johnston
Board Member 11 of 11 4 of 4 60of 6 NA NA
— Professor Mary-
Louise Fleming
Board Member — 9of 11 3of4 1o0f1 30of 5 NA
Dr Paula Conroy
Board Member - 11 of 11 4 of 4 NA 4 0of 5 NA
Mr Neil Roberts
Board Member — 10 of 11 3of4 6 0of 6 NA NA

Dr Robert Franz

NA Not a member of Committee *Guest

2019-20 ANNUAL REPORT Metro North Hospital and Health Service 75



GLOSSARY

ABF Activity Based Funding IPPF International Professional
Practices Framework
ACHS The Australian Council on Healthcare
Standards ITDR Information Technology Disaster Recovery
AHPRA Australian Health Practitioner Regulation Metro Metro North Hospital and Health Service
Agency North
BiOC Birthing in Our Community model MOHRI Minimum Obligatory Human
] ] ] Resource Information
CAC Community Advisory Committee
o MRSA Methicillin-resistant Staphylococcus aureus
CALD Culturally and linguistically
diverse communities QAO Queensland Audit Office
DCoVA Digital COVID-19 Web Portal App RAP Reconciliation Action Plan
ED Emergency Department RBWH Royal Brisbane and Women’s Hospital
eDRMS Electronic document and records S/4HANA Queensland Health’s modern finance,
management system business and logistics platform
ES Elective Surgery SAMP Strategic Asset Management Plan
FTE Full Time Equivalent STARS Surgical, Treatment and
Rehabilitation Service
GP General Practitioner
) ] ] TPCH The Prince Charles Hospital
HSCE Health Service Chief Executive
] WAU Weighted Activity Unit
HHS Hospital and Health Service
ieMR Integrated Electronic Medical Record
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COMPLIANCE CHECKLIST

Summary of requirement

Basis for requirement  Annual

report
reference
Letter of compliance A letter of compliance from the ARRs — section 7 p3
accountable officer or statutory body to the
relevant Minister/s
Accessibility Table of contents ARRs - section 9.1 p5
Glossary ARRs — section 9.1 p76
Public availability ARRs - section 9.2 p2
Interpreter service statement Queensland p2
Government Language
Services Policy
ARRs — section 9.3
Copyright notice Copyright Act 1968 p2
ARRs — section 9.4
Information licensing QGEA — Information p2
licensing
ARRs — section 9.5
General information Introductory information ARRs — section 10.1 p8
Agency role and main functions ARRs — section 10.2 p8,9
Operating environment ARRs — section 10.3 p13
Non-financial performance Government’s objectives for the community ARRs — section 11.1 p6

Other whole-of-government plans /
specific initiatives

ARRs — section 11.2 p12,13

Agency objectives and performance indicators

ARRs — section 11.3 p10

Agency service areas and service standards

ARRs — section 11.4 p28,29

Financial performance Summary of financial performance ARRs — section 12.1 p29
Governance — management Organisational structure ARRs — section 13.1 p22
and structure
Executive management ARRs — section 13.2 p21
Government bodies ARRs — section 13.3 NA
(statutory bodies and other entities)
Public Sector Ethics Public Sector Ethics p26
Act 1994
ARRs — section 13.4
Human Rights Human Rights Act p27
1994

ARRs — section 13.5

Queensland public service values

ARRs — section 13.6 p8
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Summary of requirement Basis for requirement  Annual
report
reference
Governance — risk Risk management ARRs — section 14.1 p24
management and
accountability
Audit committee ARRs — section 14.2 pl5
Internal Audit ARRs — section 14.3 p25
External Scrutiny ARRs — section 14.4 p25
Information systems and record keeping ARRs — section 14.5 p26
Governance — human Strategic workforce planning and performance  ARRs — section 15.1 p23
resources
Early retirement, redundancy and retrenchment  Directive No. 4/18 p24
Early Retirement,
Redundancy and
Retrenchment
Open Data Statement advising publication of information ARRs — section 16 p2
Consultancies ARRs — section 33.1 p2
Overseas travel ARRs — section 33.2 p2
Queensland Language Services Policy ARRs — section 33.3 p2
Financial Statements Certification of financial statements FAA — section 62 po1
FPMS — sections 38,
39 and 46
ARRs - section 17.1
Independent Auditor’s Report FAA — section 62 p92

FPMS — section 46
ARRs — section 17.2

FAA Financial Accountability Act 2009
FPMS Financial and Performance Management Standard 2019

ARRs Annual report requirements for Queensland Government agencies
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